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Founded in 2001, Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd (“Sihuan
Pharmaceutical” or the “Company”) has become the largest cardio-cerebral
vascular (“CCV”) drug manufacturer in China's prescription drug market by
market share since 2007. Sihuan Pharmaceutical is an integrated corporate
with its own production, research and development (“R&D”) and marketing
capacities. The success of the Group can be attributed to its differentiated and
proven sales and marketing model, extensive nationwide distribution network,
diversified product portfolio, and strong R&D capabilities. The Group’s current
products encompass the top five medical therapeutic areas in China: cardio-
cerebral vascular system, central nervous system, metabolism, oncology and

anti-infectives.

The Group has begun its innovative drug R&D since 2008 and now possesses a
well-established innovative and generic drug R&D platform, which is supported
by close to 600 R&D experts and focuses in therapeutic areas with considerable
unmet clinical demand, including CCV, oncology, diabetes, non-alcoholic liver

diseases and pain relief.
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman)
Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
M:r. Choi Yiau Chong (Chief Financial Officer)
Dr. Guo Feng (resigned on 20 April 2018)
Dr. Zhang Jionglong (Chief Investment Officer)
(appointed on 20 April 2018)
Ms. Chen Yan Ling (appointed on 20 April 2018)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Homer Sun (resigned on 20 April 2018)
M:r. Kim Jin Ha

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Patrick Sun

Mzr. Tsang Wah Kwong
Dr. Zhu Xun

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mzr. Choi Yiau Chong
Ms. Mok Ming Wai

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

M. Choi Yiau Chong
Ms. Mok Ming Wai

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Patrick Sun (Chairman)
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong
Dr. Zhu Xun

M:r. Kim Jin Ha

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Zhu Xun (Chairman)
Dr. Che Fengsheng

Mz. Patrick Sun

Mzr. Tsang Wah Kwong
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman)
Dr. Guo Weicheng

Mr. Patrick Sun

Dr. Zhu Xun

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mzr. Choi Yiau Chong (Chairman)
Dr. Guo Weicheng

Mr. Patrick Sun

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
P.O. Box HM1022
Hamilton HM DX

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 4905, Office Tower, Convention Plaza
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
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Hong Kong
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2018, the PRC government continued to deepen the medical reform,
including directing quality medical resources into primary healthcare
institutions, implementing the hierarchical healthcare system, more
precise management of the coverage of medical insurance, promoting
the reform of medical insurance payment methods, improving the drug
pricing mechanism and accelerating the establishment of an integrated

supervision system.

In the presence of new changes and challenges, the Group formulated
precise short-, mid- and long-term development strategies, in order to
strengthen its operational fundamentals in accordance to the direction
of medical reform. 1) Targeted management: the Group has devised
specific marketing strategies for different kinds of products to realize
their full potential. 2) Push forward innovative drug and generic drug
R&D: the Group has been strategically focusing on major therapeutic
areas, and has achieved remarkable results for the six months ended 30
June 2018 (the “Period”). 3) Optimizating product resources: the Group
has strengthened academic promotion and evidence-based research,
while promoting R&D progress, and has been seeking opportunities
for investment, mergers and acquisitions (“M&A”"), and international

collaboration.

In the first half of 2018, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB1,278.3 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 11.2%,
2.1% lower than the second half of last year. Profit attributable to
owners of the Group was RMB765.7 million, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 9.1%, 26.2% higher than the second half of last year.
According to data from IMS Health Incorporate (“IMS”), the Group
remained the largest CCV drug manufacturer in China's prescription drug
market with a market share of 8.62%. The Group ranks eleventh among
pharmaceutical companies in China’s hospital market with a market share

of 1.44%.
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

During the Period, the Group has accomplished major achievements in

product sales, marketing, R&D and business development, including:

Innovative oncology drug Pirotinib and digestive system drug
Anaprazole Sodium have commenced Phase II clinical trial in
China.

Exclusive product and pediatric medicine Midazolam Oromucosal

Solution has been included in the priority review process.

Two mature products, including Troxerutin and cerebroproptein
hydrolysate injection (Brand name: Yuanzhijiu/Xingwei) and
Salvia Miltiorrhiza and Ligustrazine Hydrochloride Injection (brand
name: Weiao) have recorded desirable growth, with year-on-year

growth rate of 26.4% and 80.8% respectively.

Three growth-stage products, Floium Ginkgo Extract and
Tertam Ethypyrazine Sodium Chloride Injection (Brand name:
Mainuokang), Roxatidine Acetate Hydrochloride For Injection
(Brand name: Jieao) and Monoammonium Glycyrrhizinate and
Cysteine and Sodium Chloride Injection (Brand name: Huineng)
continued to exhibit strong growth, with year-on-year growth rate

of 46.1% for their sales revenue combined.

Several key products have been included in more clinical
pathways. Cerebroside-kinin injection (brand name: Oudimei/
Aofutai/Weitong/Jielixin) has been included in 2018 edition of
Interpretation of Clinical Pathway (Rehabilitative medicine).
Monoammonium Glycyrrhizinate and Cysteine and Sodium
Chloride Injection (Brand name: Huineng) has been included in
2018 edition of Interpretation of Clinical Pathway and Therapeutic
Drugs (Rheumatology).

The Group has established its Global Business Development
Department in both China and the United States (“U.S.”). The
team is equipped with expertise in both domestic and overseas
pharmaceutical industries, and will be dedicated in exploring
and assimilating leading medicinal technology among major

therapeutic areas to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Sales and Marketing

The Group possesses a diversified product portfolio that allows it to
adjust its sales and marketing strategies in accordance to different market
situations. During the Period, the Group rolled out targeted strategies for
products in different stages of growth. Through targeted management,

the Group further realized potential of its product portfolio.

1. Promote high-growth products

The Group’s high-growth products have achieved remarkable
growth during the Period, through expanding hospitals in
provinces where the products have been included in Provincial
Reimbursement Drug Lists (‘PRDLs”). The sales volume of these
products is expected to achieve further growth by winning tenders

and being included in more PRDLs in the future.

2. Deepen penetration in the existing first-tier market of mature

products and acclerate the development of primary market

During the Period, the Group dedicated its efforts in deepening
penetration of its mature products in first-tier markets where there
was already extensive coverage, targeting to exploit untapped
hospital resources, with the aim to stabilize sales and achieve steady
growth. At the same time, in view of the government’s promotion
of hierarchical healthcare system, the Group concentrated its
effort on directing the resource to primary healthcare institutions,
while accrelating the development of small and medium-sized
hospitals and community medical institutions in third- and
fourth-tier cities. According to IMS for the first quarter of 2018,
Sihuan Pharmaceutical ranked sixth in terms of county market
development with purchase amount reaching RMB3.16 billion,

outperforming other domestic pharmaceutical companies.

3. Strengthened academic promotions to enhance marketing
capabilities
The Group continued to step up its national academic pormotions,
resulting in improved market recognition and coverage. Key
products such as cerebroside-kinin injection and troxerutin and
cerebroproptein hydrolysate injection have been listed in PRDLs
of more provinces and secured more tender wins with tender
price maintained stable. The Group improved efficiency of its
sales system by providing systematic trainings to salespersons and

distributors.
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

4. Strengthened evidence-based research to extend product life
span
The Group conducted evidence-based research to reinforce the
recognition of the clinical efficacy, safety and indications of
its main products, of which the results have been published.
Meanwhile, the Group promoted inclusion of its main produts
in official clinical guidelines, expert consensus and interpretation
of clinical pathways. In the national-level Interpretation of
Clinical Pathways and the Interpretation of Clinical Pathway
and Therapeutic Drugs which have been published consecutively
during the year, multiple products of the Group have been
recommended for various indications. The Group has also started

the post-launch re-evaluation of its exclusive and major products.

Sales Figures of Key Products

CCV Products

Troxerutin and cerebroproptein hydrolysate injection (Brand name:

Yuanzhijiu/Xingwei)

This product is exclusive in China, with indications for treating acute and
chronic cerebrovascular diseases, including cerebrothrombosis, cerebral
hemorrhage and cerebral vasospasm. The product has the advantageous
edges of scientific ingredients ratio and combining treatment with
nourishment, and has dual effects on both neural and cardiovascular
system. During the Period, revenue for this product reached RMB282.7
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 26.4%), an increase of
17.7% over the second half of last year. By 30 June 2018, the product was
regularly prescribed in 4,209 hospitals and included in 21 PRDLs. The
product had won 28 provincial tenders while the bidding price remained

stable.

INTERIM REPORT 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cerebroside-kinin injection (Brand name: Oudimei/Aofutai/

Weitong/Jielixin)

This prduct is exclusive in China, with indications for treating central
nervous system lesions caused by stroke, alzheimer’s disease, craniocerebral
lesions and hypoxic-ischemic encephalopathy in newborns. The product
is a compound preparation composed of a variety of ingredients aiding
nerve repair and regeneration. The product has been included in the
2017 edition of Interpretation of Clinical Pathways and Interpretation
of Clinical Pathway and Therapeutic Drugs (County level edition) and
has been recommended by the section of rehabilitation medicine and the
section of endocrine and metabolism diseases in the 2018 national-level
edition of the Interpretation of Clinical Pathways. During the Period,
revenue from this product reached RMB277.7 million, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 29.2%, a decrease of 5.7% over the second half of
last year. By 30 June 2018, the product was regularly prescribed in 4,145
hospitals and included in 24 PRDLs. The product had won 26 provincial

tenders while the bidding price remained stable.

Salvia Miltiorrhiza and Ligustrazine Hydrochloride Injection (Brand

name: Wei'ao)

The Group is one of the only two manufacturers of Salvia Miltiorrhiza and
Ligustrazine Hydrochloride Injection in China. This product is intended
to treat occlusive cerebrovascular diseases, ischemic cardiovascular disease,
diabetic complications and other CCV symptoms. During the Period,
revenue from this product reached RMB158.2 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 80.8%, an increase of 22.5% over the second
half of last year. By 30 June 2018, the product was regularly prescribed
in 4,326 hospitals and included in 21 PRDLs. The product had won 25

provincial tenders while the bidding price remained stable.
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

Cinepazide Maleate Injection (Brand name: Kelinao/Anjieli)

This product has been granted “Significant New Drugs Development” by
National Major Scientific and Technological Special Project and received
“Chinese Patent Gold Award” by State Intellectual Property Office (SIPO)
in 2017. This product has dual effect on improving cerebral circulation
and neural protection, and is intended to treat CCV and peripheral
vascular diseases, including cerebral arteriosclerosis, cerebral thrombosis,
coronary disease and Raynaud’s disease. The product has been included in
National Reimbursement Drug List (“NRDL”). The Group has already
commenced post-lauching re-evaluation study for this product, of which
the progress and scale both outperform peers. During the Period, revenue
from this product reached RMB 151.3 million, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 29.2%, a decrease of 14.2% over the second half of last
year. By 30 June 2018, the product was regularly prescribed in 3,859
hospitals. This product had won 30 provincial tenders while the bidding

price remained stable.

Floium Ginkgo Extract and Tertam Ethypyrazine Sodium Chloride

Injection (Brand name: Mainuokang)

This product is a compound preparation of floium ginkgo extract and
tertram ethylpyrazine, with indications in treating ischemic CCV
disease, including blood supply insufficiency, cerebral thrombosis,
cerebral embolism, coronary heart diseases, angina, heart attack, cerebral
dysfunction and Alzheimer’s disease. Floium ginkgo extract and tertram
ethylpyrazine are both included in NRDL and commonly used in clinical
practice. During the Period, revenue from this product reached RMB25.3
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 27.4%, a decrease of
45.0% over the second half of last year. By 30 June 2018, this product
was regularly prescribed in 280 hospitals and included in 9 PRDLs. This
product had won 23 provincial tenders while the bidding price remained

stable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Non-CCV Product

Roxatidine Acetate Hydrochloride Injection (Brand name: Jie’ao)

This product is a novel H2 receptor antagonist, with indications in
treating upper digestive tract hemorrhage caused by peptic ulcer
and stress ulcer. This product suppresses gastric acid secretion and
protects gastric mucosa, and has been included in the surgery section
of the 2017 edition of the Interpretation of Clinical Pathways and the
general medicine section of the Interpretation of Clinical Pathway
and Therapeutic Drugs (county-level), and has been recommended by
the digestive disease section of the 2018 national-level edition of the
Interpretation of Clinical Pathways. According to the data from IMS, the
market volume of acid inhibitor exceeds RMB16 billion which indicates
broad market potential. Additionally, the excessive use of proton pump
inhibitor led to prescription restrictions indicated in the 2017 edition
of NRDL, which has brought market opportunity for this product.
During the Period, revenue for this product reached RMB26.2 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 51.6%, an increase of 45.8% over
the second half of last year. By the end of 30 June 2018, this product was
regularly prescribed in 260 hospitals and included in 10 PRDLs. The
product had won 25 provincial tenders while the bidding price remained

stable.

Monoammonium Glycyrrhizinate and Cysteine and Sodium

Chloride Injection (Brand name: Huineng)

This product is a compound preparation of ammonium glycyrrhizinate
and cysteine and sodium chloride, with liver protecting and enzyme
reducing effces. This product is intended to treat chronic and acute
hepatitis, hepatotoxicity, early-stage cirrhosis and other conditions.
This product is an exclusive patented compound preparation and is the
only glycyrrhizic acid product suitable for the elderlies and children.
In addition, it is recommended by several clinical guidelines and
expert consensus for the outperforming safety and efficacy properties,
and was included in the rheumatology section of the 2018 edition of
Interpretation of Clinical Pathway. During the Period, revenue from this
product reached RMB17.1 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
74.1%, an increase of 79.6% over the second half of last year. By the end
of 30 June 2018, this product was regularly prescribed in 274 hospitals
and included in 11 PRDLs. This product had won 25 provincial tenders

while the bidding price remained stable.
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For the six months ended 30 June

TREEBPTEL - medical expenditure.
FE i 5
Product
—Z—tF
2017
(ARWTT)
(RMB000)

W2/ A (1t e T RS (1K R4 T 5 )
Yuanzhijiu/Xingwei (Troxerutin and cerebroproptein

hydrolysate injection) 223,634
B35, AR 0@, SERIR O H UK 51D
Oudimei/Aofutai/Weitong/Jielixin (Cerebroside-kinin injection) 392,507
IR (FF 215 R 35K
Wei'Ao (Salvia Miltiorrhiza and Ligustrazine

Hydrochloride Injection) 87,478
SUMRIR, % SR (G A IR A IR 445 T )
Kelinao/Anjieli (Cinepazide Maleate Injection) 213,703
fi HESE 4 IR B8 (AT 5] A 5L 2 ST
Yikangning/Yimaining (Alprostadil lipid emulsion injection) 112,858
A =4k Ban HAHR)
Yeduojia (Compound trivitamin B(II) for injection) 69,452
AT/ (GM1 TESHR)
Aogan/Xiangtong (GM1) 79,549
R (5 /LI AT
Mainuokang (Floium Ginkgo Extract and

Tertam Ethypyrazine Sodium Chloride Injection) 19,844
H B (8 2 1 K AR ))
Qu’ao (Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate) 45,135
S5 P
(Nicotinamide injection) 2,195

W > 00 6 10 A 8 B i 45 (7] Lh
m16.0%ZE NR#o61H &t > IhA4E

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

“EF N\
2018

(ARWTT)
(RMB'000)

282,686

277,707

158,172

151,312

79,771

75,765

67,508

25,278

16,391

14,314

During the Period, revenue from CCV products decreased 12.9% year-
on-year to RMB1,182.2 million, accounting for 92.5% of the Group’s

total revenue. This was mainly attributable to the tightening control of

Il L & B A S
Change in sales

year-on-year

26.4%

-29.2%

80.8%

-29.2%

-29.3%

9.1%

-15.1%

27.4%

-63.7%

552.2%

During the Period, revenue from non-CCV products increased by 16.0%

year-on-year to RMB96.1 million, accounting for 7.5% of the Group's
P Ak i Y 7.5% total revenue.
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7] b & £ A S

JBE (i 4 7 WEAHA=FHIEAMEA Change in sales
Product For the six months ended 30 June year-on-year
“F—tE B )\
2017 2018
(AR¥TT) (AR¥TT)
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)

BRI (TE 5T R SRR 2R VDR T RE TR TR
Jie'ao (Roxatidine Acetate Hydrochloride For Injection) 17,286 26,211 51.6%
(7] A (R A e I 2 R S A S T )
Huineng (Monoammonium Glycyrrhizinate and Cysteine and

Sodium Chloride Injection) 9,794 17,053 74.1%
U (ERPEF)
Ren’ao (Oxcarbazepine) 12,289 8,900 -27.6%
FORHE R (T S T e bRl %)
Xinnuoao (Clindamycin injection) 10,237 8,859 -13.5%
TS PR IR (A 280
Nicotinic acid injection (Vitamins) — 11,399 —

r 5%

R HEE A 4L 5% - 30 P i PR e
¥

A SR B 2 7 T A BT B A AR SR
B o B TR RO B R R R RE K 938
S GRS R ER  R
BB 2% o K AEEKS
it o JHE BERAEIE > 0 2 1 A 4
JHH BT NESE -

ARSE B F R Y AR SR S
B 58 MU 35 B v B3 AT B R & v
1HH B R a5 > oI 1F 3Ry b B 1 B
PR B o 3% 4 2 A A [ e R0 4 i ) 1Y
EREAE G W AR R R R
A G IR R G BR AAE T A  E
DF s 2 AR - IREEE B Bl — 1
SR AR R R R 7% (EGFR) R
i AE TR 1) 22 B B~ S AT 90 i R R g
B > 45 R TR R IR /N M B 5 2 T
LR - WG R B AR SF
— JUIE R A A = B R B o 6
TUF T AT R 8E b i A At R R (TR
g EMiEg]) -

R&D
Stepped up efforts and achieved remarkable progress in clinical

trials for innovative new drugs

The Group has established a clear R&D pipeline, increased its investment
in R&D and allocated more resources in therapeutic areas of major unmet
clinical needs, including oncology/immuno-oncology, diabetes and non-
alcoholic steatohepatitis (‘NASH”). The Group has been vigorously
pushing forward nine key new drugs, a few of which have achieved

positive results during the Period.

Pirotinib (WREE & JE), a self-developed innovative oncology drug, has
commenced Phase II clinical trial in China, subsequent to the completion
of Phase I global multi-centered clinical trials in the U.S. and in China.
Led by top oncologist Professor Wu Yilong, the progress of Pirotinib’s
clinical trial marks an important milestone in the Group’s innovative
drug R&D. Pirotinib is a novel irreversible pan-epidermal growth factor
receptor (‘EGFR”) tyrosine kinase inhibitor, intended for the treatment
of various types of malignant tumor, including non-small cell lung
cancer, with broad market prospect. It is expected to commence the Phase
III clinical trial in the second half of 2019 and to submit the New Drug
Application (‘NDA”) in 2021.
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G ©
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Additionally, innovative drugs Anaprazole Sodium (% & M 5t
and Benapenem (F ##5F) have already commened Phase 11 clinical
trial. Anaprazole Sodium is an acid suppressant from the proton pump
inhibitor category intended for the treatment of gastrointestinal diseases
including acid reflux and duodenal ulcer. This new drug has better
safety properties than drugs of the same class due to its single isomer
composition and multi-enzyme metabolic pathway. Benapenem is a
Carbapenem antibiotic intended to treat severe infections, Gram bacterial
infections and complex urinary tract infections. The new drug has longer
half-life and better safety properties compared to similar drugs. These two
new drugs mentioned above are expected to commence Phase III clinical
trial in the second half of 2019, and to submit the NDA in 2021.

Innovative Drug R&D Pipeline

DR

' LUSERIHTEE | A 515
Diabetes Category 1.1 | Janagliflozin
| R | R | e
Oncology Category | Birociclib
3 e LIBTADITEE | WREEE R
Oncology | Category 1.1 | Pirotinib™
N T TE
el UL DA | KA
4| O | Category 11 | AR
s FIE | LIBAEEE | R
Cccv Category 1.1 Tylerdipine
o | sk [ LummE | oadks
Anti-infective | Category 1.1 Benapenem
g X 451 2 2
ST e | oo
Oncology Category 1.1
g E | LUSUANH e | AR IE
BPH-LUTS, ED| Category 1.1 Fadanafil
; TEUARIN A G| R R IEH
9 %E{ﬁ Category 7 " Insulin
Diabetes Therapeutic Biologics analogue
0 it A5

Other innovative drug projects

* o A EFIGEIR B C o UE T E
5% B 1 R S I A o
I i B B LR 1/ B
RatBaAt - BRI R B
) o

BE_F— /NEARHIK - B ED T
& 29 22 B 4 2R B EE 6o ik 1 - PCT
B PR BR R G 401~ R A RS L
(5 41110 ) I B M8 58 95 I S A 55 2
o A AR SR B 15 52 HE Y 1 A B
F 170 85 14 Je B AN S F 65 B 1 o oAb >
T — N RH T B A T
—IEAL TR R R B R

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

* Phase I clinical trials of Pirotinib have been completed in the U.S
and in China.; it also obtained approval for Phase I/II/III clinical
trials from the CFDA, and Phase II clinical trials have been

commenced.

As of the end of June in 2018, the innovative drug platform has submitted
applications for over 600 domestic patents, 40 PCT international patents,
1 Paris Convention patent (consisting of 4 countries) and 2 U.S. patents
submitted individually. To date, the Group has been granted 170
domestic patents and 65 overseas patents. In addition, the innovative
new drug R&D team has received an R&D special project grant from the

Beijing Municipal Science & Technology Commission in 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Continued investment in CCV and (central nervous system (“CNS”))

generic drug projects and achieved sound progress

By assessing the products’ competitive landscape and clinical demand,
the Group forged ahead the development of key projects, and scheduled a
number of new products to be launched in the coming years. Besides, the
Group has designated a few oral solid dosage products for bioequivalence
test, including Metformin hydrochloride tablec (B —F &M, a
first-line diabetes drug. It is expected that this product will soon pass the
bioequivalent test and contribute to the profitability of the Group when

officially launched.

In addition, Midazolam Oromucosal Solution (PK7E ME iy IR, Hﬁ{%{&),
the Group’s self-developed pediatric medicine, has been listed in the 30th
batch of “Announcement on Registration Application for Drugs to be
Included in the Priority Review Process” recently released by the Center
for Drug Evaluation of China Food and Drug Administration (“CFDA”)
(B 5 =B S 25 54 i 5 i R 5 H 8%). The product is intended
to treat prolonged, acute, convulsive seizures in infants, toddlers, children
and adolescents (from the age of 3 months to 18 years). The Group
has been the first and sole entity to submit application for production
approval to CFDA and the product is currently in the process of reiew
and evaluation. The inclusion in the priority review process is expected
to expedite the review and approval timeframe for the drug to market.
This product is expected to exhibit broad prospect when marketed in the

future.

The Group’s generic drug pipeline consists various CCV and CNS
drugs, such as Vinpocetine Injection (% P4 T HI1), Rivastigmine
Hydrogen Tartrate Capsule (B f1 & R EHTTIBE), Levetiracetam
Tablets (/£ ZHIFIH A), Amlodipine Mesylate Tablets (<7t i 72 %
%ﬂiﬂzﬁf) and Levetiracetam Injection (EZJEE@EW{&) This
diversified porfolio will supplement the Group’s short- to mid-term

product resources.

During the Period, there are 71 preparation projects and 48 active
pharmaceutical ingredient projects ongoing on generic drug R&D
platform, among which 7 products have commenced the bio-equivalence
test. The 71 preparation projects include therapeutic drugs in CNS,

endocrine system, digestive system, anti-viral and anesthesia.
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

On the extensive experience over the years, the Group has maintained
leadership position in the CCV prescription drug market in China. With
strong and stable fundamentals and excellent financial capability, the
Group also seeks to increase the revenue from non-CCV drugs and the

strategy has proven effective.
8y

Looking forward, the Group's vision in sales and marketing and business
operation is precise, clear and determined. Stepping into the next page
of development, the Group implemented a series of internal adjustments
with the aim to “strengthen R&D capabilities, optimize product
resources and accelerate market expansion”. In the future, the Group will
be investing significant resources into developing a sustainable pipeline
of innovative and generic products, through in-house R&D, M&A and
international collaboration. In the meantime, the Group will maintain
a diversified product portfolio and a sustainable product resources for
the mid- to long-term growth. In terms of marketing, the Group will
continue to increase penetration in lower-end markets for its mature
products, and improve market coverage of its growth stage products by
winning tenders and inclusion in more PRDLs. Last but not the least, the
Group will strive for the sustainable development and better returns for

its shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

For the Period, the Group continued to strengthen its CCV drug
business while promoting sales of its products of other therapeutic areas.
The total revenue of the Group decreased by 11.2% or approximately
RMB162.0 million from RMB1,440.3 million for the six months ended
30 June 2017 to RMB1,278.3 million for the Period, in which sales
of CCV drugs for the Period amounted to approximately RMB1,182.2
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB175.2 million
when compared with the six months ended 30 June 2017, accounting for

approximately 92.5% of the Group's total revenue.

Revenue derived from non-CCV drugs increased by approximately
16.0% from RMB82.9 million for the six months ended 30 June 2017 to
RMB96.1 million for the Period, accounting for approximately 7.5% of

the Group's total revenue.

Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales for the Period amounted to approximately
RMB252.6 million, accounting for approximately 19.8% of the total

revenue.

Gross profit

Gross profit was RMB1,025.7 million for the Period, representing an
increase of RMB7.3 million when compared with RMB1,018.4 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2017. Overall gross profit margin
increased from 70.7% for the six months ended 30 June 2017 to 80.2%
for the Period, which was mainly due to the fact that the margin of
products from a joint venture which previously distributed by the group
was consolidated into Group accounts after we acquired the controlling

stake of the joint venture.

Other net gains

Other net gains increased by RMB169.6 million from RMB134.5
million for the six months ended 30 June 2017 to RMB304.1 million for
the Period, which was mainly due to an increase in government grant as

compared with the same period of last year.
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

Distribution costs

Distribution costs for the Period increased by RMB29.9 million to
RMB101.0 million over the same period last year due to significant
increase in national scale academic promotion activities, which were

conducted in order to strengthen the product brand building.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 33.8% from RMB269.0 million for
the six months ended 30 June 2017 to RMB359.8 million for the Period,
in which R&D cost increased 48.8% from RMB91.9 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2017 to RMB136.8 million for the Period. This
was mainly due to enhanced operation and development of the Group
resulting in an increase in relevant administrative expenses and R&D
input.

Other Expenses

Other expenses decreased from RMB36.9 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2017 to RMB21.9 million for the Period, which was
mainly due to a decrease in foreign exchange loss.

Profit before income tax

Due to the aforesaid, the Group’s profit before income tax decreased by
7.6% from RMB997.2 million for the six months ended 30 June 2017 to
RMB921.0 million for the Period.

Income tax expenses

The Group’s income tax expenses decreased by 14.0% from RMB156.7
million for the six months ended 30 June 2017 to RMB134.8 million for
the Period.

Profit for the Period

Due to the aforesaid, the Group's net profit decreased by 6.5% from
RMB840.5 million for the six months ended 30 June 2017 to RMB786.2
million for the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by 9.1% from
RMBB842.5 million for the six months ended 30 June 2017 to RMB765.7
million for the Period. Excluding the investment gain of RMB125.8
million from disposal of equity interest in Beijing Boren Hospital in June
2017, profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by 6.8%
compared with the six months ended 30 June 2017.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests increased from losses of RMB2.0 million for
the six months ended 30 June 2017 to gains of RMB20.6 million for the
Period.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB1,457.2 million (as at 31 December 2017: RMB831.9 million) and
other current financial assets amounted to RMB2,791.3 million (as at 31
December 2017: RMB2,967.4 million).

The Group generally deposits its excess cash in interest-bearing bank
accounts and current accounts. The Group may use extra cash for short-
term investments in order to obtain better returns. Therefore, members
of the Group entered into agreements with certain banking institutions
to invest extra cash. According to such agreements, during the Period,
the total amount of investment of members of the Group amounted to
RMB2,757.8 million. The investments made by the Group according
to these agreements were categorized as short-term investments, which
mainly consisted of financial planning products purchased from certain
state-owned banks. For the said financial planning products, the issuing
banks of such financial planning products may invest the Group's
funds at their discretion into financial instruments such as treasury
bonds, discounted bank acceptances, commercial acceptance bills and
bank deposits. The investment principal of RMB2,757.8 million plus
interest of approximately RMB33.5 million in aggregate amounted to
approximately RMB2,791.3 million, which was recognized as other
current financial assets in the consolidated balance sheet of the Group as
at 30 June 2018. As at the date of this interim report, total amount of
sold/repaid investment principal amounted to RMB2,213.8 million.
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Save as disclosed below, the Group did not have other liabilities and
bank loans, as a result of which, its gearing ratio (net debt to equity
attributable to owners of the Group plus net debt) is less than 2%.

The Group has sufficient cash as at 30 June 2018. The Directors are of

the opinion that the Group does not have any significant capital risk.
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30 June 2018 31 December 2017

AR AR T

RMB’000 RMB'000

REEY RE

Unaudited Audited

Bla BB GEEY Cash and cash equivalent 1,457,181 831,859
B R Less: Borrowings 210,906 -
1,246,275 831,859
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

Trade and other receivables

The Group's trade receivables consist of credit sales of its products to
be paid by its distributors. Other receivables of the Group consist of
other receivables, bills receivable, prepayments to suppliers and amounts
due from related parties. The Group’s trade and other receivables were
RMB673.1 million as at 30 June 2018, representing a decrease of
RMB74.0 million when compared with trade and other receivables of
RMB747.1 million as at 31 December 2017, mainly due to a decrease in

bills receivable for the Period.

Inventory

Inventory as at 30 June 2018 amounted to RMB282.0 million (as at
31 December 2017: RMB228.0 million). Inventory turnover days were
182 days for the Period (for the six months ended 30 June 2017: 92
days). The Group had no inventory impairments during the Period. The
increase in inventory turnover days during the Period was mainly due to
increase of inventory level in order to avoid supply shortage, in view of
price fluctuation of certain raw materials, as well as the newly constructed
and old pharmaceutical ingredient production facilities are undergoing

the process of handover during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment consist of buildings,
production and electronic equipment, motor vehicles and construction in
progress. As at 30 June 2018, the net book value of property, plant and
equipment amounted to RMB2,905.4 million, representing an increase
of RMB451.8 million, or approximately 18.4%, when compared with the
net book value of property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2017.
The increase was mainly attributable to the expansion or construction of
existing and new production facilities, office space and the purchase of

equipments.

Goodwill

The Group's goodwill arose from the acquisitions of subsidiares. As at
30 June 2018, the net carrying amount of goodwill was RMB2,843.9
million (as at 31 December 2017: RMB2,843.9 million).

Intangible assets

The Group's intangible assets mainly consist of customer relationships,
patents, deferred development costs and product development in
progress. The deferred development costs and product development in
progress mainly represented the acquisitions of certain pharmaceutical
R&D projects from external research institutions and self-developed
R&D projects. As at 30 June 2018, net intangible assets amounted to
RMB1,293.7 million (as at 31 December 2017: RMB1,338.0 million).

Trade and other payables

The Group's trade and other payables primarily consist of trade payables,
other payables, accrued expenses and payables to employee remuneration.
As at 30 June 2018, trade and other payables amounted to RMB1,753.3
million, representing a decrease of RMB51.5 million when compared
with the trade and other payables as at 31 December 2017, mainly due to
adoption of IFRS 15, the outstanding balance of advances from customers

has been reclassified from trade and other payables to contract liabilities.
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

Contingent liabilities and guarantees

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had no material contingent liabilities or

guarantees (31 December 2017: nil).

Off-balance sheet commitments and arrangements

As at 30 June 2018, the Group has not entered into any off-balance sheet
arrangements or commitments to provide guarantees for any payment
liabilities of any cooperative factories. The Group did not have any
variable interests in any unconsolidated entities that provide financing
or liquidity, create market risk or offer credit support to the Group
or engage in the provision of leasing, hedging or R&D services to the

Group.

Capital commitment

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had a total capital commitment of
RMB215.5 million, mainly set aside to acquire property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other

current financial assets and other receivables.

All the cash equivalents and bank deposits are placed in certain PRC
reputable financial institutions and high-quality international financial
institutions outside the Mainland China. All those irrevocable bank
bills, classified as notes receivable, are issued by the banks in the PRC
with high credit rating. There was no recent history of default of cash

equivalents and bank deposits in relation to these financial institutions.

In relation to trade receivables, the Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk and has policies in place to ensure that
certain cash advance has been received upon the agreement of the related
sales orders with customers. For those with credit period granted, the
credit quality of the counterparties is assessed by taking into account
their financial position, credit history and other factors. It also undertakes
certain monitoring procedures to ensure that proper follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. The Group regularly performs ageing
analysis, assesses credit risks and estimates the recoverability of groups of
trade receivables bearing similar credit risk based on historical data and

cash collection history.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other current financial assets are the bank financial products issued by
certain PRC reputable banking institutions. There was no recent history
of default and the executive directors of the board of the Company are of

the opinion that the credit risk related to the investments is low.

In relation to other receivables, the credit quality of the debtors is assessed
by taking into account their financial position, relationship with the
Group, credit history and other factors. Management will also regularly
review the recoverability of these other receivables and follow up the
disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The executive directors of the board
of the Company are of the opinion that the default by counterparties is

low.

No other financial assets bear a significant exposure to credit risk.

Foreign exchange risk

RMB is the functional currency of the Group. Financial instruments of
the Group are denominated in RMB. The Group is subject to currency
risk of United States Dollar (“USD”) or Hong Kong Dollar (‘HKD")
against RMB as the Group has some cash balances denominated in
USD or HKD. In addition, dividend payment of foreign currency
converted from RMB is subject to foreign exchange rules and regulations
promulgated by the PRC government. As at 30 June 2018, the Group
had a balance of HK$151.5 million (equivalent to RMB127.8 million) of

outstanding borrowings denominated in a foreign currency.

For the Period, the Group did not purchase any foreign exchange, interest

rate derivative products or relevant hedging tools.

Treasury Policies

The Group finances its ordinary operations with internally generated

resources.

Capital expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditure primarily consists of purchase of
property, plant and equipment, land use rights and intangible assets.
For the Period, the Group's capital expenditure amounted to RMB182.7
million, of which expense on property, plant and equipment, acquisition
of land use rights and purchase or in-house development of intangible
assets amounted to RMB109.1 million, RMB69.3 million and RMB4.3

million.
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In which, for the Period, the Group’s investment in capital expenditure
for R&D was RMB21.9 million, of which RMB18.1 million was spent
on property, plant and equipment. The remaining RMB3.8 million

increment was for purchasing and self-developed intangible assets.

Material acquisition and disposal

There is no material acquisition and disposal for the Period.

Pledge of assets

The following assets were pledged to bank to secure banking facilities

granted to the Group as at ended 30 June 2018:

7
As at
“%E CEF-iE
AH=Z+TH  FZA=+T—H
30 June 2018 31 December 2017
AR T ANRWT T

RMB’000 RMB 000

RBEG KEY

Unaudited Audited

S £t B Leasehold land and buildings 448,516 -
448,516 -

NIE B NE B #i

NI B R A5 WA B 0 75 DUS T 19
AT EE - AR S 2 R AR
HBET 030 58 o A5 B A
B 5N B IR B HECR - LSRR B
HOET AR A B ERAEA R AR
W -

BoE— ERA=TH > REBER
HT3,707 A A 52 B A 10 37 4 M
B AR A NRH 2208 H & T (H 2
ZE—LENAZTHIEAMEA AR
W 1559 ETT) -

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

Human Resources and Remuneration of Employees

Human resources are indispensable assets to the success of the Group in a
competitive environment. The Group provides competitive remuneration
package to all employees. The Group reviews its own human resources
and remuneration policy regularly, to encourage employees to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and promoting the long-

term growth of the Company.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had 3,707 employees. For the Period,
total salaries and related costs of the Group were approximately
RMB220.8 million (for the six months ended 30 June 2017: RMB155.9

million).
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Other Information

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2018, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had the
following interests and short positions in the shares of the Company (“Shares”),
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”):

(i) Directors’ interests in Shares

JBEHERE R 7 43 1L

et 488 Approximate

ERES MR Sy Total Number percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity of Shares Shareholding
HSTHE L ZPE Bt (MRt D) 5,906,908,698( 4 1) 62.37% (W)
Dr. Che Fengsheng 5,252,042,038 Bt (4T A) (B3 4) 62.37% (L)
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 5,906,908,698 (L) 0.08% (IRA)

5,252,042,038 Shares (L) (Note 4) 0.08% (S)

B ERT A (FE2)
10,889,660 B (I &)

7,789,660 (IRAET)
7,789,660 (S)

7,789,660 R (IRAT)
Settlor of a trust (Note 2)
10,889,660 Shares (L)
7,789,660 Shares (S)

Tic {6 R 2

800,000 B (4 A7)
Interest of spouse
800,000 Shares (L)

o RE AR (B3 3)
925,757,000 & (47 57)
Other interest (Note 3)
925,757,000 Shares (L)
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HHLEH HERR TRy

Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity
FRAE R JEnE T DN

Dr. Guo Weicheng 11,350,000 & (47 5)

Beneficial owner
11,350,000 Shares (L)

RREMERTA
318,386,000 B (41 5)
Settlor of a trust
318,386,000 Shares (L)

FoAh AR (P 3E S)
5,812,972,698 i (4F )
Other interest (Note 5)
5,812,972,698 Shares (L)

R HE R A4 Z YIRS (M RE7)

Dr. Zhang Jionglong 198,940,000/ (47
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 7)
198,940,000 Shares (L)
i B E 4

1,321,000 B (4 4)
Interest of spouse
1,321,000 Shares (L)

oAt HE %5 (B3 8)
5,905,087,698 [ (4 £7)
Other interest (Note 8)
5,905,087,698 Shares (L)

Total Number
of Shares

5,906,908,698 (1)
(KH3E 6)
5,906,908,698 (L)
(Note 6)

5,906,908,698 (1)
(Fft5E9)
5,906,908,698 (L)
(Note 9)

JBERERE A 3 b
Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding

62.37% (M)
62.37% (L)

62.37% (I
62.37% (L)

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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(6)

[

iz%ﬂgiﬁyf’lenty Gold Enterprises
Limited ( [Plenty Gold| ) EL#ATHEAL]
60% LA B Network Victory Limited 2HFEL
BATRAM T G A o P BT
A B i Plenty Gold &Network Victory
Limited 2l A (AR 22 7]4,754,594,038
[ %2497,448,000 B A TP AT B4

H RIS B A A M #€(Sihuan Management
(PTC) Limited ( [ZFEAAF ) BHZ
FEN) WM ERTAZ— o B R
ZRE AN FEFEA 910,889,660 By (4F
1) Jt7,789,660 /ety (IRA) hHEA
i

RS 8 5 B B 0155317 B3 18k - H
VST R AL A P el S A B A
M o R A R E R
A7 HE AR BB 2 A HE4319282,580,000
J& ~ 329,736,000 ~ 113,180,000/ &
200,261,000/ i {5 #E A HE 4

1#5,906,908,698 & I 7y (4F ) o > B

T A 3 48 7 7 1k (R 4 I L At B 43 A

PR > A B 2 7 282,580,000 R [
(hFAy) s R -

MU A8 5 B B3 317 Rz 8tk -
AR A R A B el S TR - 3
HEWR R A TR R
A7 R 4 BRI B AT HER195,263,731,698
I~ 235,800,000/ ~ 113,180,000/ K
200,261,000 et H A HESR

J#5,906,908,698 ety (hF ) o Ak
I R R A5 T I A T A R RE £ 1

PR o BB B 112 235,800,000 A R
(b ) oA HESS

Notes:

1

3

)

)

©)
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Other Information

Dr. Che Fengsheng is the beneficial owner of approximately 60% of the issued share
capital of Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited (“Plenty Gold”) as well as the entire
issued share capital of Network Victory Limited. As such, Dr. Che Fengsheng is
deemed to be interested in the 4,754,594,038 Shares and 497,448,000 Shares held
by Plenty Gold and Network Victory Limited in the Company, respectively.

Since Dr. Che Fengsheng is one of the settlors of the trust for which Sihuan
Management (PTC) Limited (“Trustee Co.”) is a trustee, Dr. Che Fengsheng is
deemed to be interested in the long position in 10,889,660 Shares and the short
position in 7,789,660 Shares held by Trustee Co.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Che Fengsheng is deemed to be
interested in the 282,580,000 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 113,180,000 Shares
and 200,261,000 Shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng
Xianhui and Dr. Zhang Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested

in, respectively.

Among the long position in 5,906,908,698 Shares, Dr. Che Fengsheng is interested
in or deemed to be interested in the long position in 282,580,000 Shares through

both the nature of interest in a controlled corporation and other interest.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Guo Weicheng is deemed to be
interested in the 5,263,731,698 Shares, 235,800,000 Shares, 113,180,000 Shares
and 200,261,000 Shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng
Xianhui and Dr. Zhang Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested

in, respectively.

Among the long position in 5,906,908,698 Shares, Dr. Guo Weicheng is interested
in or deemed to be interested in the long position in 235,800,000 Shares through

both the nature of settlor of the trust and other interest.
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(7)

(8)

)

(10)

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

TRMMFER 4 FKeen Mate Limited 2 H5C %
TIRARI E A AN > B R Keen
Mate Limited F47 198,940,000 5 153 7
WAL -

RIS T B B0 317 318tk - iR
0 HE A A 2 S 0 T e L TR A~ 5
MR A o R R O A E A
A7 HE A W 2 AT R 195,263,731,698
J§ ~ 329,736,000 ~ 113,180,000 % &
198,440,000 L0 v A HE i o

145,906,908,698 [kt (W) H o iAW
HE A 7 A8 2 2 PR 2 B LA 45 1

PR o BB i 198,440,000 % i
(U ) AR -

T L) REREERZERMB TR
M B TS H AR 00 % 4 e 0 1
o

7

®)

(10)

Dr. Zhang Jionglong is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of
Keen Mate Limited and is deemed to be interested in the 198,940,000 Shares held
by Keen Mate Limited.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Zhang Jionglong is deemed to be
interested in the 5,263,731,698 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 113,180,000 Shares
and 198,440,000 Shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng
Xianhui and Dr. Zhang Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested

in, respectively.

Among the long position in 5,906,908,698 Shares, Dr. Zhang Jionglong is
interested in or deemed to be interested in the long position in 198,440,000 Shares

through both the nature of interest in a controlled corporation and other interest.

The letter “L” denotes the Director’s long position in such Shares and the letter “S”

denotes the Director’s short position in such Shares.
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(i) Directors’ interest in the shares of associated corporations

JRERERER T 2 b

WG 44 7 WA ME By et 5 H Approximate

Name of ERES Nature of Number of percentage of

Associated Corporation Name of Director Interest/Capacity Shares Shareholding

Plenty Gold SR Hrilis 4,511,813 60.16%
Dr. Che Fengsheng Beneficial interest

Plenty Gold AR A Halis 1,989,915 26.53%
Dr. Guo Weicheng Beneficial interest

Plenty Gold TRIMBE R Tt M A 403,162 5.38%

Dr. Zhang Jionglong  Beneficial interest

BR L SCRT 4 88 # 5 > 1A =% — VN H
=FH fEE S TRATHABSE
Z I B M 1 A ) CELAT ] AR i 2
] (G 2 a5 7 B B R 0150 XV i) 2 M
o~ A Ay B A o v AT AR R R O
B R 150 XV R4 7 R 8 3 W A
O R B AE B 2 A R (LA AR A
T B B9 2 A7 B R SO 2 B
TRHEA < HEE SR ) - BUHGLBRAE AR 98
o5 B BRI 352 AT B2 B Rt it
RS BIRA > SRR T A&
ARG ) B A B 2 W i BR A

T BBy o 0 5 Z B

WA AR AT TAT S - EEATEA
B4 A 2 BB SOR U T L AL TE 8 i
R M SR S TR ICR 4 2 A 5 DA
N AT R IR AT G B A o AN ]~
P22 ) AT Ao B 22 ) 5 408 22 BAT ] 22
B 25 IR A A R L S
Al o

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, none of the Directors,
chief executive and their associates had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO, which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he/she/it was deemed or taken to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise which were required to be notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the Period, the Company did not grant any rights to any Directors, chief
executive or their respective spouse or children under the age of 18 to acquire
beneficial interests by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, and none of the above persons have exercised the said rights during
the Period. The Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries were
not a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in

any other body corporate.
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BRI 336 RAF B 2SR Micsk > LT
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AR FEFATHR ~ A BB S5 A 5%

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2018, the following shareholders, other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, had interests of 5% or

more (including short positions) in the issued share capital, underlying Shares or

bl ERER (BARIRA) - debentures of the Company:
JBCRERE A 7 3 L
JBe 73 48 8 Approximate

JBe 3 44 MR Sy Total Number percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest/Capacity of Shares Shareholding
ES . Vit FPELIHER (M) 5,906,908,698 (1) 62.37% ()
Mr. Meng Xianhui 113,180,000 i (47 ) (KF5E3)

Interest in a controlled 5,906,908,698 (L) 62.37% (L)

corporation (Note 1) (Note 3)

113,180,000 Shares (L)

HABHERS (KF3E2)

5,906,908,698 i (4F )

Other interest (Note 2)

5,906,908,698 Shares (L)
Plenty Gold ([ 4) SRR ZEDN 4,765,594,038 (1IF &) 50.32%
Plenty Gold (Note 4) 4,754,594,038 & (17 4) 4,765,594,038 (L)

Beneficial owner

4,754,594,038 Shares (L)

CEAUX SN

10,889,660 i (4 5) 7,789,660 (IR A) 0.08%

7,789,660 [ (A )
Settlor of a trust

10,889,660 Shares (L)
7,789,660 Shares (S)

7,789,660 (S)

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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IR BRI HE R A R SR R
115,263,731,698/% ~ 329,736,000/ ~ 113,180,000
B 200,261,000 B0 b HE A7 HE 45

() 1%5,906,908,698 K Mk f (A ) " dmEELA
B Z R N 2R S LA RE 2R RO VR R B
Fiiit 113,180,000 0 (hFA) A HE% -

(4 Plenty GoldH#EHFFA AL F4,754,594,038 %K
o HIREFEH A4 7)10,889,660 A7 (4F
) K7,789,660 i (RA) HEHMZFEA
N FIRIME— R o UL > Plency Gold B2 7
ZAL A AR 110,889,660ty (7 A) I
7,789,660 My (IRA) hHEA HERS

G) TR L) REBOR LS R A5 T
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Other Information

Notes:

1) Mr. Meng Xianhui is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Smart Top
Overseas Limited and is deemed to be interested in the 113,180,000 Shares held by Smart

Top Overseas Limited.

2) Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Mr. Meng Xianhui is deemed to be interested
in the 5,263,731,698 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 113,180,000 Shares and 200,261,000
Shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng Xianhui and Dr. Zhang

Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested in, respectively.

(3) Among the long position in 5,906,908,698 Shares, Mr. Meng Xianhui is interested in or
deemed to be interested in the long position in 113,180,000 Shares through both the nature

of interest in a controlled corporation and other interest.

(4) Plenty Gold directly holds 4,754,594,038 Shares in the Company. It is also the sole
shareholder of Trustee Co. which is interested in long position in 10,889,660 Shares and
short position in 7,789,660 Shares in the Company. Accordingly, Plenty Gold is deemed to
be interested in long position in 10,889,660 Shares and short position in 7,789,660 Shares
held by Trustee Co.

) The letter “L” denotes the shareholder’s long position in such Shares and the letter “S”

denotes the shareholder’s short position in such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, according to the records in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, no other parties had an
interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company recorded under section 336 of the SFO as at 30 June 2018.
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by the Shareholders at
the special general meeting held on 24 October 2017 (“Share Option Scheme
Adoption Date”), which will be valid for ten (10) years from the Share Option
Scheme Adoption Date.

PURPOSE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate Eligible Persons (as
set out in paragraph (b) below) (i) to optimise their future contributions to
our Group; (ii) to reward them for their past contributions; and (iii) to attract,
retain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with Eligible Persons who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the

performance, growth and success of our Group.

(a)  Eligible persons

Our Board may, at its sole discretion, invite any director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any member
of our Group, any executive director of, manager of, or other employee
holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in,
any member of our Group (an “Employee”), any proposed Employee,
any full-time or part-time Employee, or a person for the time being
seconded to work full-time or part-time for any member of our Group (an
“Executive”), a consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of any member of our Group, a person
or entity that provides research, development or other technological
support or any advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of our Group, or an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of any of the foregoing persons (together, “Eligible Persons” and each an
“Eligible Person”).

INTERIM REPORT 2018



(b)

HEAE B

()  EH G R R AR
BT B e AL A 5 B A A L (TR R
N D) A B2 ) T A
BHE -

(i)  EFIARRIRAE TS B AL
ALEBRRE - R KT ACRIE
MIERR - B2 2% N LR AL
JECHE B A S E o

(i) MRAERER > BRIFE RS ARE -
A2 m AT B E 5 B
N BN A5 ) T A A3 B AT A
FERRE - B [ v e s AR R
FBERE R 31 452 i i A HE

(v) A B AL EORIR N i i2
P g AR (AR R A B R
b PO HEE 1Y A I A AR BT IR
EF} S 5 B A {20 A )
A HER TS EORI0A B G R B CS
% DR I HE A A R
[NV VS VSIN A8 3.3 1
NEEAS SR AR & B > 3
JIAF SR R (B AT 80 P ol
FBCHE T ) B HCE A B A RO o

R AR B TR ) (BRI AR 8 A Ao L
B R B R W RE L ) T R
f1) i i e R HE R AT 08 1 67 7 6 AT 10 I 0
HH > R G TR - I IRORE £
H I B 347 B 1 109 ([ 51 #1325 b
PR 1) » MEAS LY B AT # 6 il 2 5 Y
15 DL B R 5 ofk P S o A | B g
EBR MR AT AR R R S ) (SR AR
AR AT A U2 [ 8 5 4% I R RE
H1E) Ol RESR A0 T A I SR RE T A T A T
B IO B - F 2 A A5 R IR R
Kt EHCEE % LR BB AT
i 10% °

(b)

HAth & R

Other Information

Determination of eligibility

(i)  The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant to any
Eligible Person (a “Grantee”) an option to subscribe for Shares

under the Share Option Scheme.

(i)  The basis of eligibility of any Eligible Person to the grant of any
option shall be determined by our Directors from time to time on
the basis of their contributions to the development, growth and

success of our Group.

(iii)  For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any option by our
Company for the subscription of Shares to any person who falls
within the definition of Eligible Persons shall not, by itself, unless
our Directors otherwise determine, be construed as a grant of

options under the Share Option Scheme.

(iv)  An Eligible Person or a Grantee shall provide the Board such
information and supporting evidence as the Board may in its
absolute discretion request from time to time (including before
the offer of a grant of option, at the time of acceptance of a grant
of option and at the time of exercise of an option) for the purpose
of assessing and/or determining his eligibility or continuing
eligibility as an Eligible Person and/or a Grantee or that of his
close associates or for purposes in connection with the terms of an
option (and the exercise thereof) or the Share Option Scheme and

the administration thereof.

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all options
which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme (and under
any other post-IPO share option scheme of our Company) shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the Share Option
Scheme Adoption Date (“Scheme Mandate Limit”), provided that our
Company may at any time as our Board may think fit seek approval from
the Shareholders to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit, except that the
maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all options
which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme (and under any
other post-IPO share option scheme of our Company) shall not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval by the Shareholders

in general meeting where such limit is refreshed.

MERBHEZREEERATF

2018 FEAER &



o Ath B

Other Information

{7 I B A o M (R AR R
AT (B AR A 8 R A A HoAl B U B
BRI O S B0 ) 452 o8 T 0 R AT B R A
TR AT B T A PR T 0 4T 9 M £
BH BZAH-EARCETROK
30% ©

A SR T K I 9 4 A R A I
A B 2 AR AL MR R ST B T e
Tie % T 34T 2 I A A8 K B 947,108,220
FBE B4y > HRE Y BB AT 2 B A
10% ©

TEATRAT 12 3 B o 42 T T — 2 5
RS N 0 B B RE (L A7 08 I ok
A7 0 1 B Je E ) A 8 T L AT SAE T
BANRMEE > &2 AHEBARKD
BT 19 o A1) Bl A B A A 118
PRI g R SR S R I A (|
B ) b MHEGECRT R
W RER TR A B TR B (f
FEOATHE ~ CRE8H e ARAT O 1) G IRCRE )
T 2B AT B T 34T 0 e Ml > A LR
9,471,082 & (RF T #AT IR0 19%) > I3
I FRORE ZE A B R R B b AR BROR 3 AT
Wi iz A Em AL REHEARE
BN (B DL ) PR 5L -

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme (and under any other post-IPO share option scheme of our

Company) shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of Shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under
the Share Option Scheme after the resolution regarding the adoption of
the Share Option Scheme is passed at the SGM would be 947,108,220
Shares, representing approximately 10% of the total number of Shares in

issue.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to any one Eligible Person (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. Where any further grant of options to
such an Eligible Person would result in the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and which may be granted to such
Eligible Person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
representing in aggregate over 9,471,082 Shares (1% of the Shares in
issue), such further grant shall be separately approved by the Shareholders
in general meeting with such Eligible Person and his associates or close

associates (as the case may be) abstaining from voting.
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Grant of options

On and subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme, our
Board shall be entitled at any time within a period of ten (10) years commencing
on the Share Option Scheme Adoption Date to offer the grant of any option to
any Eligible Person as the Board may in its absolute discretion select, and on
acceptance of the offer, grant such part of the option as accepted to the Eligible

Person.

Subject to the provisions of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may in its
absolute discretion when offering the grant of an option impose any condition,
restriction or limitation in relation thereto in addition to those set forth in
the Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit (to be stated in the letter
containing the offer of the grant of the option), including but without prejudice
to the generality of the foregoing continuing eligibility criteria, conditions,
restrictions or limitations relating to the achievement of performance, operating
or financial targets by our Company and/or the Grantee, the satisfactory
performance or maintenance by the Grantee of certain conditions or obligations
or the time or period when the right to exercise the option in respect of all
or some of the Shares to which the option relates shall vest, provided that the
period within which the Shares that the option relates shall vest on a date not

more than ten (10) years from the date of the grant of the option.

The rules of the Share Option Scheme provide that the Board may specify the
Eligible Persons to whom Share Options shall be granted, the number of Shares
subject to each Share Option and the date on which the Share Options shall
be granted. The Share Options may be exercised at any time during the Share
Option Period subject to certain conditions, restrictions or limitations imposed
pursuant to the rules of the Share Option Scheme. The basis for determining
the subscription price is also specified precisely in the rules of the Share Option
Scheme. There is no performance target specified in the Share Option Scheme.
The Directors consider that allowing the Board discretion to fix, among other
things, the minimum period for which a Share Option must be held before
it can be exercised, performance targets and the subscription price, upon the
grant of Share Options will better serve the purpose of the Share Option Scheme
as this will allow the Board to grant Share Options that cater to the specific
circumstances of the Grantee, taking into consideration the Grantee’s seniority,
experience, past work performance, field of expertise, etc., and thereby providing

appropriate motivation and incentive to the Grantee.
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted when
the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
Grantee together with a remittance in favour of our Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by our Company within
the period specified in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the option.
Once such acceptance is made, the option shall be deemed to have been granted

and to have taken effect from the offer date.

An option shall be exercised in whole or in part by the Grantee according to the
procedures for the exercise of options established by our Company from time to
time. Every exercise of an option must be accompanied by a remittance for the
full amount of the subscription price for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of

such option.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall be such price as
our Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of the grant of
the relevant option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer of the
grant of the option) but the subscription price shall not be less than whichever

is the highest of:
(1) the nominal value of a Share;

(i)  the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily

quotations sheet on the offer date; and

(iii)  the average of the closing prices of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five Business Days immediately

preceding the offer date.

The subscription price shall also be subject to adjustment in accordance with

reorganization of capital restructure.

Since the date of the adoption, no share option had been granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme and there are no outstanding

share options.
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EMPLOYEES SHARE AWARD SCHEME

An award scheme for the purpose of incentivizing the management of the Group
(the “Employees Share Award Scheme”) has been adopted by Plenty Gold,
Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng on 25 October 2010. On 25 January
2013, MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V. also participated in the Employees Share
Award Scheme. Trustee Co. (a private trust company established in the British
Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Plenty Gold) has been appointed as the
trustee to hold the reserved Shares under the Employees Share Award Scheme.
Plenty Gold, Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng, as settlors of a trust,
have reserved and set aside a total of 33,750,000 Shares; and MSPEA Pharma
Holdings B.V. has reserved and set aside an additional 3,750,000 Shares, all
of which are being held by the Trustee Co. as trustee for the Employees Share

Award Scheme.

On 28 June 2016, 234 employees of the Group (the “Selected Participants”)
were granted an Employees Share Award Scheme to acquire an aggregate of
31,448,172 Shares of par value HK$0.01 each (“Option Share”) from the
trustee at an exercise price of HK$1.57 per Option Share (the “New Awards”)
on the condition that the Selected Participants will surrender the existing award
(or the remaining balance of such award if a portion of it had been vested and
exercised) granted to the Selected Participants previously on 20 March 2012 and
27 September 2013 by the Company. Subject to certain vesting conditions and
the satisfaction of certain performance targets (if any), the New Awards shall be
exercisable over a period of five years commencing from the date on which the

New Awards are granted.

The Employees Share Award Scheme involves granting of awards over the
existing Shares held by the Trustee Co. as trustee on trust for the benefit of
the employees of the Group and no new Shares will be issued pursuant to the
Employees Share Award Scheme. The granting of the New Awards will not have

any material financial impact on the Company.

As of 30 June 2018, a total of 20 employees have exercised their share awards
involving 989,999 Shares.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), there are no changes in information

of Directors during the Period and up to the date of this Interim Report.
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or

redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the Period.

DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of RMBO0.4 cents per Share (equivalent to HKO0.5 cents
per Share) (for the six months ended 30 June 2017: RMB1.8 cents per Share)
was declared by the Board on 27 August 2018. It is payable on or around
Wednesday, 31 October 2018 to shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on
Wednesday, 24 October 2018.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR THE
ENTITLEMENT OF INTERIM DIVIDEND

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 22
October 2018 to Wednesday, 24 October 2018, both days inclusive, for the
purpose of determining shareholders” entitlements to the interim dividend. In
order to qualify for the interim dividend, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 October 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code, as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the Period.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiries by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the Period.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this interim report, the Audit Committee consists of one non-
executive Director (Mr. Kim Jin Ha) and three independent non-executive
Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun), and is
chaired by Mr. Patrick Sun who has a professional qualification in accountancy.
The chairman of the Audit Committee has the appropriate professional
qualification and experience in financial matters. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the Group’s interim condensed consolidated financial information for
the Period.

By Order of the Board
Dr. Che Fengsheng
Chairman of the Board

27 August 2018
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL
HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

INTRODUCTION

We have reviewed the interim financial information set out on pages 42
to 92, which comprises the condensed consolidated statement of financial
position of Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2018 and the related condensed consolidated
statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the six-month period then ended, and explanatory notes. The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited require the preparation of a report on interim financial information
to be in compliance with the relevant provisions thereof and International
Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (“IAS 34”). The
directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of
this interim financial information in accordance with IAS 34. Our responsibility
is to express a conclusion on this interim financial information based on our
review. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of

this report.

SCOPE OF REVIEW

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review
Engagements 2410“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review of interim financial information
consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial
and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures.
A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable
us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit

opinion.
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Independent Review Report

CONCLUSION

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the interim financial information is not prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with IAS 34.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 August 2018
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

7
As at
“EB )\ B e
B3 AH=Z+H +ZA=1+—H
Notes 30 June 31 December
2018 2017
ANRIWFIT ANR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB 000
RBE REY
Unaudited Audited
B Assets
RV & Non-current assets
Y2k~ WE Mk Property, plant and equipment 6 2,905,383 2,453,594
i L/ Investment properties 6 17,794 17,814
ik Goodwill 6 2,843,903 2,843,903
WY G Intangible assets 6 1,293,696 1,338,006
{5 P HE Land use rights 6 821,740 702,661
o PR HE 2 32 Investments accounted for

AHEE using the equity method 7 1,126,436 1,012,091
IR AE T 13 B Deferred income tax assets 8 195,376 127,514
JE Vi Eh 4 R = Non-current financial assets 9 268,083 220,000
A it 4 i Available-for-sale financial assets 9 - 39,076
HoAhIE i H) & Other non-current assets 15,389 62,880
FER & A A Total non-current assets 9,487,800 8,817,539
TR Current assets
HFE Inventories 282,012 227,970
B 5y B oA R IR 2K Trade and other receivables 10 673,142 747,141
HAbi g4 mEE Other current financial assets/

Ak Available-for-sale financial assets 9 2,791,257 2,967,354
H& KA &% EY Cash and cash equivalents 11 1,457,181 831,859
TENE A Total current assets 5,203,592 4,774,324
N 29e3 Total assets 14,691,392 13,591,863
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

S
As at
ZEN\E e S
{13 AAZTH +ZH=1—H
Notes 30 June 31 December
2018 2017
ANR¥F ANRBTT
RMB’000 RMB 000
RBEY REY
Unaudited Audited
Rz K AR Equity and liabilities
N/ TPN 3T £ Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
A Share capital 12 78,233 78,233
e 53 ¥ A Share premium 12 4,093,317 4,093,317
HoAth e Other reserves 143,709 166,210
TR 2 A Retained earnings 7,384,643 6,719,232
11,699,902 11,056,992
FEe B 25 Non-controlling interests 299,446 279,078
HRERS Total equity 11,999,348 11,336,070
=Lt Liabilities
JeiiE £ Non-current liabilities
R AE P AR B Deferred income tax liabilities 8 250,878 264,396
BHAR Contract liabilities 16 16,248 —
ERES Borrowings 14 83,145 —
o JE 5 B & ik Other non-current liabilities 13 62,341 88,084
FEIRE £ A Total non-current liabilities 412,612 352,480

MREBEEREEFRAR
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

IS
As at

“B—E B
F&E AH=Z+HH +-A=+—H
Notes 30 June 31 December
2018 2017
AREFIT AR¥F
RMB000 RMB 000
Unaudited Audited

B A & Current liabilities
B 5 B AbREAT Hz K Trade and other payables 15 1,753,308 1,804,787
HRIAMR Contract liabilities 16 362,173 =
B Ry N=E i Current income tax liabilities 29,401 70,829
e Borrowings 14 127,761 =
HoAh ) & & Other current liabilities 13 6,789 27,697
=R Total current liabilities 2,279,432 1,903,313
FN=Er Total liabilities 2,692,044 2,255,793
HE 25 I B AR A Total equity and liabilities 14,691,392 13,591,863

5551 3 92 ELAY B RE £ b S0 0 ) 4 A RS R The notes on pages 51 to 92 are an integral part of the interim condensed

WAL Ay o consolidated financial statements.
T+ A
Che Fengsheng Guo Weicheng
i FH
Director Director

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BEAA=ZFHIEAMEA

Six months ended 30 June

—ER )\ e e
2018 2017
i3 AR¥F ARHET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB000
RBEY R
Unaudited Unaudited
Wt Revenue 17 1,278,306 1,440,310
S A Cost of sales (252,563) (421,943)
EF Gross profit 1,025,743 1,018,367
HAt e A Other income 17 97,340 66,470
HAbizs — 8 Other gains - net 17 304,108 134,543
11 e RR — TR BfY 8 A ) Gain on derecognition of a subsidiary
il & — 125,771
8 A Distribution costs (100,971) (71,025)
AT 32 Administrative expenses (359,803) (269,004)
oA B 3 Other expenses (21,927) (36,902)
R wF Operating profit 944,490 968,220
BB Finance expenses (2,039) —
MG I A R R Share of profits and losses of investments
-tV NEEES accounted for using the equity method (21,405) 28,966
Wik e 5 il i Profit before income tax 921,046 997,186
P 5B BH 5 Income tax expense 18 (134,817) (156,716)
11 Pyt Profit for the period 786,229 840,470
VLT AL A - Attributable to:
Z/NEIE 2PN Owners of the Company 765,671 842,456
JEFEIEE 4 Non-controlling interests 20,558 (1,986)
786,229 840,470
P /RS ERERZEUN Earnings per share attributable to ordinary
R A e 25 ) equity holders during the period
T A 2 7 Basic and diluted earnings per share (expressed
(AR AR F1/R)  in RMB cents per share) 19 8.08 8.87
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BEAA=ZFHIEAMEA

Six months ended 30 June

ZF)N\E —Z—tF
2018 2017
ANBRH T ARHT T
RMB000 RMB 000
AT KR
Unaudited Unaudited
A A Profit for the period 786,229 840,470
BN ENLVON Other comprehensive income
A LR I T A Other comprehensive income to be reclassified
45 1 H A A TE YA to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
A E R Available-for-sale investments:
AT EEEE) Changes in fair value — 36,352
MFT AL G R R Reclassification adjustments for gains
e i T4 8 20 included in the consolidated statement
R — A A of profit or loss — gain on disposal — (33,920)
WAL 2T > ERBIH Other comprehensive income
for the period, net of tax — 2,432
199 P9 2 i W A Total comprehensive income for the period 786,229 842,902
VAT REAY Attributable to:
/NG XN Owners of the Company 765,671 844,888
PR iig e Non-controlling interests 20,558 (1,986)
786,229 842,902

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S0 T R A 2 R

RATHA MEL
Attributable to owners of the Company
L
ek AR B FABRERT (R A Non- b o
Share Treasury Share Other Retained i controlling Total
capital Shares premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
ARMTRL ARMTL ARKTE ARMTE ARMTE ARMTE ARMTE AR%TL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W_F—t4H—A—H&H Balance as at 1 January 2017 79,443 (255) 4,344,229 137,096 6,340,925 10,901,438 69,655 10,971,093
R i Profit for the period = = = — 842456 842,456 (1,986) 840,470
LR TN Other comprehensive income
for the period
A ERE Changes in fair value
FERBURR of available-for-sale
ATHEES investments, net of tax — — — 2,432 — 2,432 — 2,432
ETLION K Total comprehensive income — — — 2,432 842,456 844,888 (1,986) 842,902
e B 3 S Bt 31 Employee share award scheme:
—ATIRBERE — value of employee
(HtzE20) service (Note 20) — — — 889 — 889 - 889
[ ety (Hak12) Repurchase of shares (Note 12) — 955)  (250,912) = —  (251,867) —  (251,867)
HEREAERR (B Cancellation of treasury shares
(Note 12) (1,210) 1,210 — — — — — —
SR NERMRE Final 2016 dividend — — — —  (359,901) (359,901) —  (359,901)
AR RE Special cash dividend = = = —  (520,910) (520,910) —  (520,910)
B E—RHEA R Disposal of a subsidiary — — — — — — 346 346
REF—LEAAZTH Balance as at 30 June 2017
Btk (REHE) (unaudited) 78,233 — 4093317 140417 6,302,570 10,614,537 68,015 10,682,552
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AN B NHERG
Attributable to owners of the Company
ek el
Bk ARG RNEE EBRE REEA Non- bl 1)
Share Treasury Share Other Retained 3t controlling Total
capital Shares premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
ARWTE  ARWTT ARWTT ARWTT ARMTT ARWTT ARETT ARWTT
RMB000 RMB000  RMB000 RMB000  RMB000 RMB000  RMB000 RMB 000
WZF—t4#+ZH=+—H Balance as at 31 December 2017
b 78,233 — 4,093,317 166,210 6,719,232 11,056,992 279,078 11,336,070
TR 40 0 T i 5 O Opening adjustment due
SO M th 51 4 to IFRS 9 adoption = = —  (22,864) 22,864 - = —
REZE—N\E—H—HEH  Balance as at 1 January 2018 78,233 — 4,093,317 143,346 6,742,096 11,056,992 279,078 11,336,070
byl Profit for the period = = = — 765671 765,671 20,558 786,229
TS A Total comprehensive income — — — — 765,671 765,671 20,558 786,229
8 2 e St ) - Employee share award scheme:
- HLMEEE (W20 — value of employee service
(Note 20) - — — 173 — 173 — 173
“ELEANRE Final 2017 dividend (Note 21)

(Fsk21) = = = —  (123,124) (123,124) —  (123,124)
W=RBEATNHELRET Interest changes in a subsidiary — — — 190 — 190 (190) —
REZZ—NEAA=H Balance as at 30 June 2018

Gk CREED) (unaudited) 78,233 — 4093317 143,709 7,384,643 11,699,902 299,446 11,999,348
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEAA=ZTHIEAEA

Six months ended 30 June

ZE)N\E S w2
2018 2017
Wt &t ANBRHToC ARIET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB000
RIBE REFE
Unaudited Unaudited
RGBT Cash flows from operating activities
BEEENBS Cash generated from operations 22 1,261,941 1,076,744
R NE /NG & E i Income tax paid (257,625) (174,032)
BEEH B &R R EH Net cash flows from operating activities 1,004,316 902,712
REFH B SR Cash flows from investing activities
HEEARIME Capital contribution to associates (135,750) (19,999)
B — 1 Bt g A ) Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary
1 3 4 A T — 49,646
W i — ] Y g ) Acquisition of a subsidiary (419,475) (799,995)
WEEMIE ~ W% Bt fifhsk  Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (109,115) (195,294)
il B TR Purchase of intangible assets (4,286) (14,467)
i B b ) Purchases of land use rights (69,264) —
Hi e PR R AR AR Purchase of financial assets at fair
1 4 Bl G value through profit or loss (11,659,558) —
i TR o e Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets — (4,131,600)
& AP EF AR £ Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
11 4l at fair value through profit or loss 11,845,490 —
Tt L B Proceeds from disposal of
REE e available-for-sale financial assets — 3,629,000
JEEWIE - WE K Proceeds from disposal of property,
B T A plant and equipment — 131
2 FLE Interest received 65,182 33,920
BEFE B EREFH  Net cash flows used in investing activities (486,776) (1,448,658)
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEAA=ZTHIEAEA

Six months ended 30 June

ZEN\E —E L
2018 2017
Bt &1 ABRHFToC ANEBWHTFIT
Notes RMB 000 RMB000
RIS REEHFE
Unaudited Unaudited
A Y B U Cash flows from financing activities
R RGO Proceeds from borrowings 210,906 —
18 1] % i B A Repurchase and cancellation of shares 12 — (251,867)
— [ B} &g 2~ ) Capital contribution by non-controlling
Tt R R shareholders of a subsidiary 20,000 —
EATAL A R B Dividends paid to the Company's shareholders (123,124) —
RSB AT (BT ) Net cash flows generated from
B4 B A /(used in) financing activities 107,782 (251,867)
Bl& RBLEEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash
B,/ (A ) B and cash equivalents 625,322 (797,813)
B B4 K B E ) Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the period 831,859 2,407,073
IR B & R Bl a5 Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the period 1,457,181 1,609,260

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AR
SR AP R A T (AR )
IR0 T 20 T R R
AT -

AR E R BB AT o AT R
J&§ o~ 7 (SRR AR T 1) 1) 3 2 365 2 I
R PERTE ~ Sk S R R A

A0S ) E M HE O M Bk £ Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, P.O. Box HM
1022, Hamilton HM DX, Bermuda © 44
VB = B A R AT U 1 SR
I F /AN ZOIE

AT T 0 U 5 2 5
BRAF - AAFR - E—FETH
— A ke

Bk 55 At B > A o U 1] ) 2 A S i
RUARWIARK]) ThEIE
L o A H 10 A B S R R S — % — A
AAZ AL B E R R T3

A A B A S T it BOR
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2.1 HRdskue

BWEZFE—/EANH =T H LA
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] % 2 ) 565 34 SR o B B B AR
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S WD A A S R I S B 4
JEE SO R T R Y BT A B
5 M e B I B o e
(I R e 50 25 A ) A e 22—
F-LEFZA=Zt—HIEEER
AFBERA R K — B o

BEZF—)UEAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda under the Bermuda Companies Act as an

exempted company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are the
research and development, manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical

products in Mainland China.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, P.O. Box HM 1022, Hamilton HM DX, Bermuda.
The main operation address of the Group is Room 4905, Office Tower,
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company had its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 28 October 2010.

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousand Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated. The interim
condensed consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in

accordance with a resolution of the directors on 27 August 2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES TO THE
GROUP’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2018 have been prepared in accordance
with International Accounting Standard 34, “Interim Financial

Reporting”.

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements do not
include all the information and disclosures required in the annual
financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with
the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017, which have been prepared in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZE—)EAH=THIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

MBI B EE R BOR 2
W) )
22 ARBEFAHGFRD - B

RAERT

i e 30 £ D A A S R R R AR
MEBOREAERBE %t
Ft A=t —HIEEZEREY
BHERPTHRAE 20 WHRAR =
F—/\FE—H — B AR B e Rl B
B o ARG MG A 4R R A 2L LA L
I R AE RO AE T HC A YRR R R
I

AR5 B A J03 D B S R 1 B
AT A RTHER -

I R B 5 o UV B8 2 BB T AR
Amendments to IFRS 2

I R A 5 M UV B8 4 SR AB T AR
Amendments to IFRS 4

VS5 i o5 R U2 0 5%

IFRS 9
R I A 5 o 4 S 15 9
IFRS 15

PR BB i HE SR 15 SR RT A
Amendments to IFRS 15

PR et BRI E 40 SRIERT A
Amendments to IAS 40

I o s i o P 2 B e AR 2298
IFRIC 22
SRR TR RAER I R ERUE
Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES TO THE
GROUP’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 New standards, interpretations and amendments
adopted by the Group

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the interim
condensed consolidated financial statements are consistent with
those in the Group's annual financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017, except for the adoption of the new and revised
standards effective on 1 January 2018. The Group has not early
adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has

been issued but is not yet effective.

The Group has adopted the following new and revised standards

for the first time for the current period’s financial statements.

LU 03 23 B RERI 1 K5 1 7 Rt
Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions
L [ B 5 7 TR R 5 4 O PR A [ I A 1 P B 5 R A
FHosEMITA
Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts
B TR
Financial Instruments
F G4 A
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
T IF B B R 15 G557 A& A At
Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
HREREYE
Transters of Investment Property
IR 5 TN (C 1
Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
B R T R A AR 1 SERIE 15 8 T SR 28 SEHT 67T
Amendments to IFRS I and IAS 28

INTERIM REPORT 2018
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF—)UEAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

2. GIMLW R ALEGIBE 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES TO THE
SH) ) GROUP’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 AHEIRAAHTEL - R 2.2

New standards, interpretations and amendments

BAEHT (4
BRSO I RRSY - R R
A~ R T AT 3 0 S 00
GLES A E SR PR 2 B

R S 2 e o 5 15 WE A
aA At

IR ¢ B 5 o T B 58 15 BE AN
BER R N REESL - |
P8 st Y U5 18 SR L A K AR B
B R R &S 5 A E AR
foicas > BRI %S & 4032 HL A A
HURRFE BRAL o I8 e J e 52—
AFHA S AR &2 cas A
B o AR B R SV B o YR U5 s
5% > WA 1% RE S M R TR 1
5B ) R T A R A0 £
RS -

QISR AR B - A58
MBS S RERREES &4
IRy B BT A B 2 B AL = R A
JNRT WA B 40 1Y 3 R A S SEL R
T8 4 AT B At i 27
B o

7R G2 T 775 9 BR ) AR A W 9 48 ) 4R
JH T R A 10 % A 5 o BB 1
BE o LI i At M5 05 9
AR5 R P T 0 4 B D Y o R 52
RS H

adopted by the Group (Continued)

Other than as further explained below, the adoption of other new
standards, interpretations and amendments do not have a material
impact on the interim condensed consolidated financial statements

of the Group.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18
Revenue and related interpretations and it applies to all revenue
arising from contracts with customers, unless those contracts are
in the scope of other standards. The new standard establishes a
five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled

in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into
consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when
applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers.
The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs
of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a

contract.

The Group adopted IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
method of adoption, and IFRS 15 would be applied only to

contracts that are not completed at the date of initial application.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZE—)EAH=THIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

2. HWEHEOREEEEIBORE 2
W) )
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A
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES TO THE
GROUP’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 New standards, interpretations and amendments

adopted by the Group (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement; impairment; and

hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, with the initial
application date of 1 January 2018 and did not adjust the

comparative information for the period beginning 1 January 2017.

(a)  Classification and measurement

Except for certain trade receivables, under IFRS 9, the
Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through

profit or loss, transaction costs.

Under TFRS 9, debt financial instruments are subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
amortised cost, or fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI). The classification is based on two criteria:
the Group’s business model for managing the assets; and
whether the instruments’ contractual cash flows represent
“solely payments of principal and interest” on the principal

amount outstanding (the “SPPI criterion”).
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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BEZF—)UEAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES TO THE
GROUP’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 New standards, interpretations and amendments

adopted by the Group (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

The new classification and measurement of the Group’s debt
financial assets are debt instruments at amortised cost for
financial assets that are held within a business model with
the objective to hold the financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows that meet the SPPI criterion. This
category includes the Group's trade and other receivables,

and loans included under other non-current financial assets.

Other financial assets are classified and subsequently
measured as financial assets at FVPL which comprise
derivative instruments and quoted equity instruments that
the Group had not irrevocably elected, at initial recognition
or transition, to classify at FVOCI. This category would also
include debt instruments whose cash flow characteristics fail
to meet the SPPI criterion or are not held within a business
model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash
flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell.
Under IAS 39, the Group’s quoted equity securities were
classified as AFS financial assets. Upon transition, the AFS
reserve relating to quoted equity securities, which had
been previously recognised under accumulated OCI, was

reclassified to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZE—)EAH=THIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES TO THE
GROUP’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 New standards, interpretations and amendments

adopted by the Group (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

The assessment of the Group'’s business models was made as
of the date of initial application, 1 January 2018, and then
was applied retrospectively to those financial assets that were
not derecognised before 1 January 2018. The assessment
of whether contractual cash flows on debt instruments are
solely comprised of principal and interest was made based
on the facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition of

the assets.

The accounting for the Group's financial liabilities remains
largely the same as it was under IAS 39. Similar to the
requirements of IAS 39, IFRS 9 requires contingent
consideration liabilities to be treated as financial instruments
measured at fair value, with the changes in fair value

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Under IFRS 9, embedded derivatives are no longer separated
from a host financial asset. Instead, financial assets are
classified based on their contractual terms and the Group's

business model.

The accounting for derivatives embedded in financial
liabilities and in non-financial host contracts has not

changed from that required by IAS 39.
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BEZF—)UEAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES TO THE
GROUP’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 New standards, interpretations and amendments

adopted by the Group (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the
Group's accounting for impairment losses for financial assets
by replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-
looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach.

IFRS 9 requites the Group to record an allowance for ECLs

for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original

effective interest rate.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has applied the
standard’s simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime expected credit losses. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors

specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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BEZZE—)EAH=THIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES TO THE
GROUP’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 New standards, interpretations and amendments

adopted by the Group (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment (Continued)

For other debt financial assets (i.e., loans), the ECL is based
on the 12-month ECL. The 12-month ECL is the portion of
lifetime ECLs that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will
be based on the lifetime ECL.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to
be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any

credit enhancements held by the Group.

The adoption of the ECL requirements of IFRS 9 did not
result in material changes in impairment allowances of the

Group's debt financial assets.
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BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

ESTIMATES

The preparation of interim condensed consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

In preparing interim condensed consolidated financial statements,
management made significant judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The key sources of estimation uncertainty were the
same as those applied to the annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk.

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements do not
include all financial risk management information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should be read in
conjunction with the Group’s annual financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

There have been no changes in the risk management department or

in any risk management policies since the year end.

MEREEEREEGRAR

2018 FHAHRE



) TR A B o A R

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-Z2)EAH=THILAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

4. W5 L B A B 4) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
42 NFEAF 4.2 Fair value estimation

R A TE WA E i i The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried

SZMIE &> T AREE R % at fair value as at 30 June 2018 by level of the inputs to valuation

— NAEZS A Z 4 H R A FE SRR techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised

SRV H o HE2 8% T 0t into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

T 43 J 0 A Y (ELRE A% 7 = 1 g

&

o B MR ERENAENE ®*  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
BT IR SR T i E markets for identical assets or liabilities

o 5 TR — ] ek R o Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
%N FEE 2 S B =K input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
11 5 A T8 A i A 2 00 £ directly or indirectly observable
Hefi

o B AWBENEAT ®  Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
EHFHRN S B E KRR input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
BN S B AR A unobservable

TR AEEZAHEFERNE The following table presents the Group’s assets that are measured

E e at fair value.

R=F—-NEAA=TH
As at 30 June 2018

ARWTIT
RMB’000
AREEY
Unaudited
HE BN
Level 2 Level 3
A TR AR AR 1 5 L& 2 Financial assets at fair value through profit
(i ak o) JE I & or loss (Note 9) Short-term investments 2,791,257 —
Fe N AR AR g 1 4 il 8 Financial assets at fair value through profit
(BiE 9) JF b 7 HE 45 1t or loss (Note 9) Unquoted equity shares — 39,833
2,791,257 39,833

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
INTERIM REPORT 2018
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S 75 L e 4% B (4
4.2 AFEREH )

BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2  Fair value estimation (Continued)
NE -t ZH=1—H
As at 31 December 2017

ANR#T I
RMB’000
HEFENG
Audited
BE H=JE
Level 2 Level 3
] it A A E (M E9) Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 9) 2,967,354 39,076
2,967,354 39,076

REE-F—/NEAA=ZFHIEA
A MHETEERAEE -

Jr B R
BBV H TR B AL AT
00 o T S D
B o DA R -

UHEFREMAERBAEBRL —
HZEHE A A o BDAE K R AT R -
REER - BE_F—-NEAA=ZT
FAERM@A > B st B #im o I
07 4 T A S8 5 A5 A 4 T 2R 109 B
Ll (BE-Z-EEAA=FTAIE
ANEA ) -

AL BT A R R LR AR E A
909% FAI L B 7 B LA H R B

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the six
months ended 30 June 2018.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company. The executive directors review the Group's

internal reports in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

The executive directors consider the Group to have one business segment
from the product perspective, which is the research and development,
manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products in Mainland China.
During the six months ended 30 June 2018, all sales were from
distributors and none of the distributors contributed 10% or more to the

Group's revenue (during the six months ended 30 June 2017: None).

All of the Group's operations and customers, and approximately 90% of

the Group’s non-current assets are located in Mainland China.
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BEZZE—)EAH=THIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

6. V¥ B3 #EW 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,

E R SA RN L Y ER. | INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, INTANGIBLE ASSETS,
1 JH B GOODWILL AND LAND USE RIGHTS
-
BNt REME R g HE TR
Property,
plant and Investment Intangible Land use
equipment properties assets Goodwill rights

AR ARWTFZ  AREFE  ARKTE  ARETZ
RMBO00  RMBO09  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOOO

BEZZ-\F Six months ended
ARETHIEAEA 30 June 2018
BZF—\4—H—H  Opening amount as

A A at 1 January 2018 2,453,594 17,814 1,338,006 2,843,903 702,661
NE Additions 545,783 - 4,177 - 127,828
i Disposals (1,414) — — — —
BEREE Transfer to investment

properties (518) — - — -
BAME - MR R Transfer from property,

plant and equipment - 518 - - -
17 g Depreciation and amortisation (92,062) (538) (48 487) — (8,749)

RZZ=/EAA=1H Closing amount as at
M AREH (REER) 30 June 2018 (unaudited) 2,905,383 17,794 1,293,696 2,843,903 821,740

BEZZ—tF Six months ended
AREFHRIEAEA 30 June 2017
PZF—t4—H—H  Opening amount as

R pReE at 1 January 2017 2,104,299 29,103 578,998 2,247,728 647,769
nE Additions 211,999 - 9,052 - -
W — T R 2 Acquisition of a subsidiary 48,332 - 733,130 492,933 61,623
i Disposals (57) — - - -
L& —HE AR Disposal of a subsidiary (80,060) — — (20,792) —
17 R Depreciation and amortisation (81,729) (889) (64,390) — (7,831)

REZZ—=EEAAZTH  Closing amount as at
WEIARH (REFEH) 30 June 2017 (unaudited) 2,202,784 28,214 1,256,790 2,719,869 701,561

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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s AR L0 2 T O RO
- H I -

AR NENHZTH > AEE W
A IR T E A A R 796,496,100
H(CFE—LHEFZH=Z1T—H: AR
913,495,000 70 ) ) A £ 8] 48 = 19 T A
HR(EERA R o AL ML
BUA5 R T 3 (40 A\ R ¥ 444,713,711 76
(ZF—tE+_A=+—H: AR¥
402,360,000 7C ) F - Hb fff FH HERE o A4S
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BEZF—)UEAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, INTANGIBLE ASSETS,
GOODWILL AND LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued)

The land use rights represent land use rights in Mainland China with a

lease period of 50 years.

As at 30 June 2018, the ownership certificates of buildings (“Building
Ownership Certificates”) of the Group with a net book value of
RMB796,496,100 (31 December 2017: RMB913,495,000) have not yet
been obtained by the Group. Land use rights certificates of land with a
net book value of approximately RMB444,713,711 (31 December 2017:
RMB402,360,000) have not yet been obtained. The directors of the
Company consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group to apply
for and obtain the Building Ownership Certificates and the land use
rights certificates. The absence of Building Ownership Certificates should

not lead to any significant adverse impact on the operations of the Group.

RS s B R INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD
IS
As at
ZR—)\F &Rt
AA=ZTHE FZHA=1—H
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
ANR¥TTT NRHT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
KRB KN
Unaudited Audited
I B 8 Share of net assets 636,144 551,557
A B P A 1 Goodwill on acquisition 490,292 460,534
1,126,436 1,012,091
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HEZZ— )\EAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

8. IEHEPIT3BL 8. DEFERRED INCOME TAX
BE_ZF— )FENH=THIEAMAE The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
HE BT AR B B I B AR B IR (R FE R six months ended 30 June 2018, without taking into consideration the
— B AL I A ) SR AR AR R ) ¢ offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
1) BEMEREE 1) Deferred income tax assets
&)\ TR
2018 2017
ARW T AR T
RMB’000 RMB 000
REBEY REEY
Unaudited Unaudited
t—H— H A ek Opening balance at 1 January 127,514 35,883
A F AR Credited to profit 67,862 78,297
75 H =1 H A R Closing balance at 30 June 195,376 114,180
2) BEMMERARE 2)  Deferred income tax liabilities
R )\F “F—tF
2018 2017
AR T ANR#T T
RMB000 RMB 000
RBEY RACEY
Unaudited Unaudited
i — A — H ) 4 ik Opening balance at 1 January 264,396 74,094
WA B — T A ) A Deferred tax arising from acquisition
F) 0 SE o I of a subsidiary — 182,186
i R R Credited to profit (13,518) (4,405)
N H =1 AR ARS8 Closing balance at 30 June 250,878 251,875

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
INTERIM REPORT 2018
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BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Set out below, is an overview of financial assets, other than cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, held by the Group as at 30 June
2018 and 31 December 2017:

7
As at
ZR—)\4E ZE LA
AAZ1TH +ZA=1+—H
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
i ARHF N RIETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
RIS BH#
Unaudited Audited
JERH Non-current
TEHESE AR EH LH ¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost:

JRE A Hgh 8 /A W) 3R A Amounts due from associates 1 128,250 120,000

F A RS I Other receivables ii 100,000 100,000
AT EFIABEN S MEE © Financial assets at FVPL:

I b g I A Unquoted equity share iii 39,833 —
AR A AL 2k 4S © Financial assets at FVOCI:

At E S g E Available-for-sale financial assets — 39,076
JEF B A% Total non-current 268,083 259,076
T Current
N HER AR 52 Financial assets at fair value

I 4 U through profit or loss:

Ry Short-term investments iv 2,791,257 2,967,354
T A Total Current 2,791,257 2,967,354
U A 4 i A £ Total other financial assets 2,831,090 3,006,430

MR EEREBERAR
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BEZZ—)EAA=ZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

9.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

b 4 B8 (40)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

JRE WS T A D 8 L T A BRA

( TR ] ) ‘ﬂﬁ (HR T (L
ANR120,000,0007C (ZF—LHE+=
ﬂjJr*El © AR #120,000,00078) )

Fiwt B~ SR - R LR R o HEk
Hﬁﬁ“"?lm%%ﬁ’] OB TS LG s B2
BEOS )AL 3 S5 3 48 5 i PR 8 A PR AT

A 9109 BEHEAEHEHT o F BB 45 % st
o

JRES AL S A B e R T DA AL s T R
191009 A5 AR VE G030 2807 L 4F R B IR -
F B AE3% 5 H -

B QECY IR - E it K § R EN N
] ~ KBP Biosciences Holdings Limited &
Lindeman Asia No.12 Investment Fund 7 |
TR 2 P73 1 FCRE S5 B o AR 5 T BB T L
RAFEA A A A R0 e
TEE IR A T R ] 29 458 0 0 A 4 - (
FEAF A A A o

AR A T B 5 R A A SR AT B
TEE ~ A7 F R 3 30 Bl 20 ] 2 [e 3
MR E - ZFEREYUARKSIE -
B AT (T AT A6 5T e e
4.829% (ZF—LF  45%) w5 o Rk
A R AR LR 2 3% 55 A R i
{6 - MA@ IR AR 1 a2 S 4 A 15 6
T3] B2 SRAT WA A A5 R ARG o

%5 4 A O e A I A o

Ok

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The receivable from an associate, Pharmadax (Foshan) Co., Ltd. (“Pharmadax
(Foshan)”), with a net book value of RMB120,000,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB120,000,000) was interest-bearing, unsecured and repayable in five years. The
receivable from an associate, Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co.,Ltd. (“Beijing
Ruiye”), secured by the 10% equity interest in Beijing Ruiye’s parent company,
Beijing Ruiye Economic Technology Development Co.,Ltd., was repayable in three

years. Interest is charged at 5% annually.

The receivable from Beijing Boren Hospital was secured by the 100% equity
interest in Beijing Boren Hospital and repayable in seven years. Interest is charged

at 3% annually.

The amount represents equity investments in the unquoted equity shares of Jiangsu
Antai Biotechnology Co., Ltd., KBP Biosciences Holdings Limited and Lindeman
Asia No.12 Investment Fund. The Group intends to hold these equity shares for the
foreseeable future and has not irrevocably elected, at initial recognition or transition,
to classify at FVOCL

The amount represents short-term investments placed in certain PRC reputable
banking institutions with maturity within 6 months and a non-fixed return rate.
These investments are all denominated in RMB. The fair values of these investments
are based on an average estimated return rate of 4.82% (2017: 4.5%). The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was the carrying values of
these investments. The credit quality of these investments that are neither past due
nor impaired can be assessed by referring to the internal credit ratings of banking

institutions.

None of these financial assets is either past due or impaired.

INTERIM REPORT 2018
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BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

W

As at
R\ e S e
AR=Z+H +ZH=+—H
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
B3 AR T AR EF
Notes RMB000 RMB 000
RBEY REFE
Unaudited Audited
B o IR — B = Trade receivables - third parties 187,256 167,854
JE s R 4% Notes receivable 201,209 290,589
A A R A Prepayments to suppliers 115,387 102,341
JRE WS Wi ) R Amounts due from associates i 109,651 107,959
B M EC At B i kR Amount due from other related party 9,672 9,675
A R i A Other receivables 49,967 68,723
673,142 747,141
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HEZZ— )\EAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

10. B 5 B I A HEWOR % (42) 10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
() FEWCIG = A W) K T B BH AR (i) The breakdown of amounts due from associates is as
T follows:

=R )\4E e S oS

AAZ+H +ZA=1+—H

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

ANR#F AR T IT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Jb s Beijing Ruiye a 30,000 30,000

B RENERRAF Tonghua Tianshi Pharmaceutical

Co., Ltd. b 79,651 77,942

Medifood International SA Medifood International SA — 17

109,651 107,959
(a) TE W — Z 2\ m) AL 5 S 2 00 E 1 R (a) The receivable from an associate, Beijing Ruiye, with a net book value of

T {E 25 A B #30,000,0007T » Jh AL
BEZE R\ ) 6 S A PR A R B
BRFE AT 2 7 A 1096 BE VRIS > 1A —4F
MR o FLBIREAES %R -

by  TENCE A FEAL RE R RA A
( [EILRE] ) MaRERTAR
169,400,000 7T 1 B B A 4 o N R #E
10,251,000 CHI R » 75 K K JE e
TR B o B S F4.75% 50

.

SR 05 9 A 55 % O
Yo BEEHT ARG R B
B I LB %R 0 8
AT -

N

5

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

RMB30,000,000 was secured by the 10% interest in Beijing Ruiye’s parent
company, Beijing Ruiye Economic Technology Development Co., Ltd,

which was repayable in one year. Interest is charged at 5% annually.

(b) The receivable from an associate, Tonghua Tianshi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Tonghua Tianshi”), including a loan principal of RMB69,400,000 and
interest amounting to RMB10,251,000, was unsecured and repayable in

full on demand. Interest is charged at 4.75% annually.

Trade and other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
were assessed by referring to historical information about default
rates, reputation, liquidity and other financial information of the

counterparties.
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10. B 5 B e fb Mo MRk )

() HEMCH B 2 W sk E A W A
T
S T K 0 8 5 LR 8
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BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

@)

The breakdown of amounts due from associates is as

follows: (Continued)

Most sales of the Group were settled by advances from customers.
The Group's credit terms granted to certain customers range from
one month to one year. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables

based on the invoice date is as follows:

S
As at
ZEN\E eSS E
ARZHH  +=A=t-H
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
ANRETFI AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RIS RF
Unaudited Audited
B 5 RE N R Trade receivables
318 A AR Within 3 months 176,325 161,537
32 6MMA 3 to 6 months 6,947 2,613
6E 1210 H 6 to 12 months 3,980 3,700
1210 A LAk More than 12 months 4 4
187,256 167,854
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BEZZ—)EAA=ZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

11. BeRBE%5EY 11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
iy
As at
ZF )\ ZE—hAE
AA=+H +ZHA=+—H
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
ANR¥TF I ARTF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEY REF
Unaudited Audited
4 MARTT 45 R Cash and bank balances 789,480 333,129
EHAE K Time deposits 667,701 498,730
1,457,181 831,859

SRAT Bl 4% DU B SRAT AR R R R B
BN S, o BT A 4 [ B R B 2
KifiE > EEEFFIRA T RE=
8RB TR 0 o S % A R A
S M AR B, o

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit

rates.
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BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

SHARE CAPITAL, TREASURY SHARES AND SHARE

PREMIUM
AN R N AL
Attributable to owners of the Company

ROHH Bk JEGIRY Bt T it

Number Treasury Share
of shares  Share capital shares premium Total
(THR)  AR¥Fr  AR¥Fr  AREFr  ARKFZ©
(thousands) RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

RZZF—t&#—H—H Asat 1 January 2017 (audited)

(BER) (HK$0.01 per share)

(BB 0.0137) 9,586,684 79,443 (255) 4344229 4423417
o Repurchase of shares (115,602) — 955) (250912) (251,867)
SR I Cancellation of treasury shares - (1,210) 1,210 — —
RZZ—tEAHZTH As at 30 June 2017

(RBEK) (unaudited)

(%t 0.0137c) (HK$0.01 per share) 9,471,082 78,233 — 4,093,317 4,171,550
RZZ—)\#i—H—H  Asat 1 January 2018 (audited)

(BEY) (HK$0.01 per share)

(% 0.0137) 9,471,082 78,233 - 4,093,317 4,171,550
RZZ—)UERAZ1HH  As at 30 June 2018

(REEH) (unaudited)

(8 0.01%7) (HK$0.01 per share) 9,471,082 78,233 — 4,093,317 4,171,550
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BEZZ—)EAA=ZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

13. HAb £ 13. OTHER LIABILITIES
7
As at
ZEFNE —T—hE
AH=ZtH +ZH=+—H
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
Bl AR T ARHT T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
RBEY BEY
Unaudited Audited
B85 7 S RE A AR A i 55 Deferred revenue for sales of
distribution rights i — 44222
R HE R A B Deferred government grants ii 69,130 71,559
69,130 115,781
B WEER S Less: Curtent portion
S 23 SHHE R IR AT 1R 2 Deferred revenue for sales of
distribution rights i — 21,300
R L TR A4 B Deferred government grants i 6,789 6,397
6,789 27,697
B A Non-current portion 62,341 88,084
(i) LS T B A 0 B B M AR (i) It represents the cash advances received for sales of distribution rights of certain
BT E M i B4 B o IS B AR A pharmaceutical products to distributors for 5 years. The revenue is recognised in
FHLE A S R 25 R A A T i 25 R ERT o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income based
B [ A AR R A 1 S e AR > BB on straight-line basis. Upon adoption of IFRS 15, reclassifications have been made
SR B R R AR T B I s A from Deferred revenue to Contract liabilities for the outstanding balance of such
BAGHAR - cash advances.
(ii) HA gk ~ WUm X SA BT IR (ii) It represents the deferred revenue of government grants received for the construction
FEBUFRE B S o ol e B & 7 T 4R of property, plant and equipment. It will be credited to the consolidated statement
g HR AR AL AR of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
INTERIM REPORT 2018
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fiik

0 TR W S B o A B

14. BORROWINGS

BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

R=F—\F
LIRS AH=1H
Effective As at
interest rate 30 June 2018
B & (%) ARMHT T
Notes (%) RMB000
REEY
Unaudited
Bps - CURRENT:
SRAT B — M RS 7 Bank loans - secured and guaranteed i 3.28 127,761
e NON-CURRENT:
HAb 3k Other borrowings ii 5 83,145
210,906
REF—NEAA=1H > As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s
ASEFEGRERWT - borrowings were repayable as follows:
—4E R Within one year 127,761
AR R AR In the second to tenth years 83,145
210,906

(1)

(ii)

745 A SR AT B AL AR AR A M
ey HABREMAESD S AR
448,516,250.637C » WA —F— /\FARH
= H IR R 4 A A PR 4
oo

HAt 53 (BHiChongqing Shengyou
Hospital Co., Led B0 A IEREHH > ZEit
HERER  BFEEs %R -

(@)

(ii)

The Group's bank loans were secured by mortgages over the Group's buildings,

which had an aggregate carrying value of approximately RMB448,516,250.63 and

were guaranteed by Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. as at 30 June

2018.

Other borrowings including a loan from Chongqing Shengyou Hospital Co., Ltd

was unsecured and repayable in 10 years. Interest is charged at 5% annually.
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HEZZ— )\EAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

15. B 5 R o fb EAT MRk 15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
iy
As at
“E )N\ “F—tH
i AA=+H +ZHA=+—H
30 June 31 December
Notes 2018 2017
ANR¥TF ARTF T
RMB000 RMB 000
REEY REW
Unaudited Audited
G 5 EAT IR K Trade payables i 34,586 34,320
e H % 5K Advances from customers ii — 360,594
FERE AR SR Costs of construction and purchase
R PRI CH of equipment payables 56,860 57,635
WA B — o ) 2
JREAT R 2K Payable for acquisition of a subsidiary 300,000 300,000
JEATH AP 7 #E  Amount due to other related party iii 83 83
JRE At 42 4 Deposit payables 228,120 230,796
JEAT 23 5 7 RO FE R T4 fE  Accrued reimbursement to distributors 989,463 505,833
JRE A A B TE Other taxes payable 53,390 180,749
JREA°F 38 Salaries payable 40,638 52,891
JREARE L Interest payable 1,920 —
oAt AT HR K Other payables 48,248 81,886
1,753,308 1,804,787
G  EHHEMERRARE > THBRA40 (i)  The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of 40 days.
X o
(i) TRAN I P A SR A R S 1 5 95 AR B (i) Upon adoption of IFRS 15, reclassifications have been made from trade and
BN AR AT i 5 KA A other payables to contract liabilities for the outstanding balance of advances from
HRAREM B A A AR - customers.
Giiy  MEATBI O HOE AR - SR R (iii)  The amount due to other related party is interest-free, unsecured and repayable on
BRAER - demand.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
INTERIM REPORT 2018
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

HU5 BB A IR ()

AR NFEARAZTH BHREAMIE

FOEE BB B H R IRE AT

0 TR W S B o A B

BEZZ— )\FAA=ZTHIEAMEA

For the six months ended 30 June 2018

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAY ABLES (Continued)

invoice date is as follows:

As at 30 June 2018, the ageing analysis of the trade payables based on the

S
As at
ZF N\ “ER -t
AH=Z+TH  FZA=+—H
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
AR T ANRBTT
RMB’000 RMB 000
REEEY REY
Unaudited Audited
6fHA M Within 6 months 31,170 24,329
6E12fHA 6 to 12 months 885 3,766
V4ERL b More than 1 year 2,531 6,225
34,586 34,320
525 T At JRE AST B 2 1 4 - (i B L B T The fair values of trade and other payables approximate to their carrying

{EARA o

amounts.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
BEZZ)EAH=THIEATEH

For the six months ended 30 June 2018

16. AHIAHE

16. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

S
As at
—F— )\ —E b
AH=Z+H  FZHA=1—H
i3 30 June 31 December
Notes 2018 2017
AR AR T
RMB000 RMB’000
RIS B
Unaudited Audited
B % F K Advances from customers 15(i1) 345,036 —
B ES SRR IELE N f2  Deferred revenue for sales of distribution rights 13(1) 33,385 —
378,421 —
B : B A Less: Current portion
A H &P K Advances from customers 345,036 —
ST B HERY B AL Y4S  Deferred revenue for sales of distribution rights 17,137 —
362,173 -
FE B 43 Non-current portion 16,248 =

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

INTERIM REPORT 2018
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

BEAA=+HIEAMA

Six months ended 30 June

fit “®E E bR
Notes 2018 2017
AR T ANR#T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
REHFEY RICEY
Unaudited Unaudited
4 G A Sales of pharmaceutical products i 1,278,306 1,438,304
SR B B IR B Wi Revenue from general hospital services — 2,006
L& Revenue 1,278,306 1,440,310
Hi 85 43 B e Sales of distribution rights 10,037 20,317
A Rental income 1,541 1,627
ZAEWEE IR A A Research and development income 13,923 —
FE A Interest income 71,839 44,526
H AW A Other income 97,340 66,470
BUR B Government grants il 289,940 129,935
B AR
SR ENTHE Gain on changes in fair value
Ll of financial assets at FVPL 10,592 =
Fofi Others 3,576 4,608
Fo At e 25 A Other gains - net 304,108 134,543
(i) 48 A E i &% P R E Y £ AN s dn (i) Sales of pharmaceutical products represent the sales value of goods supplied to
By ER ~ HE(ER - SR L customers, net of sales tax, value added tax, sales returns and commercial discounts.
Mo
(ii) TRl B A8 AR 45 4% 1 7 ORI B B A R (ii) The total government grants represent the subsidies received from the local
SN 4 A A T A o government and no specific conditions were attached to them.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ—)EAA=ZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

18. PrfBe b 18. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
AERHBE T ) ER -FT—LEN The income tax expense of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
H =+ B k758 B #8453 80 B 5220 4 i 2018 and 2017 is analysed as follows:
T
BENA=THIEAMHA
Six months ended 30 June
2R )\ —F—tF
2018 2017
AR#F AR IEFIr
RMB 000 RMB 000
RIBEN RICH N
Unaudited Unaudited
BRI Current tax:
109 P s ) Y BB T Current tax on profits for the Period 216,197 239,418
216,197 239,418
EAEBLIA - Deferred tax:
710 26 LAY AR I Tl Origination and reversal
of temporary differences (81,380) (82,702)
E ARl TE AR Total deferred tax (81,380) (82,702)
F A F B S Income tax expense 134,817 156,716

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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18. it BB ()
A58 BH 3%

)

(ii)

(iii)

AN
AEHKEZE T NER-F
—HB4ERNH =1 H ks A % F
TEME I RSN AT AT B JE o

U HI 1AL

MR AR SE MR E T — /E R
F—H4ENH =+ H kAW A 3 8
7 s 2 AR TR AR U6 R > 0l At
AW E B -

G EnE LG i
Fifamil )

8 4 S BT Ao L T 4% A 4 1 B g
T T H I E A A ERR B A
TR o 0 A o A AR
1M 5 R A A T AT A

T .

A S T I R 2 ) 2 ARER (R
N RIL A A 3 BT 4 B I ) 4%
VAL RS VS GRS
Bl o

ARG 45 T v A A R
AN AR SEEAE o KL > ZE B
Al 2% — N 15 % I BLR
(e UG

18.

BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Income tax expense

@@

(ii)

(ii1)

Bermuda profits tax

The Group is not subject to any taxation in this jurisdiction for the
six months ended 30 June 2018 and 2017.

Hong Kong profits tax
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had no

assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the six months ended 30
June 2018 and 2017.

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT”)

PRC CIT is provided on the assessable income of the companies
now comprising the Group derived from the PRC, adjusted for
those items which are not assessable or deductible for the PRC CIT

purposes.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group have determined and paid the
corporate income tax in accordance with the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the PRC at a 25% tax rate.

Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were qualified as high-tech
enterprises. Accordingly, those subsidiaries’ corporate income tax

for 2018 is provided at a preferential tax rate of 15%.
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HEZZ— )\EAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

19. BIRkEA

(@) FHEA
WEE— ERZFE—LEAHN
=4 B AEANE H A R A A
NV A R A A N TR A 6 I BR DA
AT 00 P R 4 4

AT B HE A A A TEAG

i A (AR T

WA IR A B A T 5 1O 2 9% 4T
W34 PR - 3 (T )

19. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
actributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue for the six
months ended 30 June 2018 and 2017.

BEAA=+HIEAMA

Six months ended 30 June

RN\ e S i
2018 2017
ANBRH T ARHT T
RMB000 RMB000
RBEY REHEY
Unaudited Unaudited

Profit attributable to ordinary equity

holders of the Company (RMB’000) 765,671 842,456
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue for basic earnings

per share (thousands) 9,471,082 9,494,407

AR (FRA R D)

Basic earnings per share
(RMB cents per share) 8.08 8.87

(b)
BRI = — A A =+ A
VEEHRE R WOl S
BRI - 5 IR 2R 4 A A %
J A B P4 -

(b) Diluted

There is no dilution to earnings per share for the period because
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares existing at 30 June
2018. The diluted earnings per share amount is the same as the

basic earnings per share amount.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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20. BB 2 250 0 A3k k.

(1)

e Aoy B it )

By 1) A 52 A T R 1t AR
Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited
([Plenty Goldl) ~ U5 F+ 5§ A= I
WAERE TR = F B A
= R — TSR (R A
FBc s B8 b s VT %t 1) o
F—=#F—H_+HH> MSPEA
Pharma Holdings B.V. N2 Hi{E B
B S Byt & o ZREANARIEHZ
ERAZFEN > WIEIE B MO 52 B
FHEIFFA T E B o Plenty Gold »
UG T A R 0 A A (1
FERMER TN CHE KA
633,750,000 1B A 24 ®] B AR 5 T
MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V.
R 48 87 51 3,750,000 FBEAS 23 7] A%
1 o A % S5 BCA 32 e A A AR
TR A8 5B 22 Wt ) L 52 RE Y B
A o 1 B IR0 88 By st 313 Jef%
2 FEA A R RA BB B
S B AL AR 1 S It B AT
WA o

77 A AR 7 LA JBCAR ARG 30
W3R EHE > wHREILER R
AR MBS T B 3 i 0 1
TR M H ERBORIE R - A0
AL AN AR AR (R BB B2 D 3 %
Ry > EABEA G R 1R By 8%
JEl 0 S 4 A 28 A B R 7 s
JRHE R -

RN BBt BE Myt &1 > Bt 32
DR TAEEGERER > WTIT
T2 B B4R JE (P 4524 P 30
2 TR A B S ) A 1k
D) M A 2 B 32 RE A F R A HY
AN TR ERA -

BEZF—)UEAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

20. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

@)

Share award scheme

An award scheme for the purpose of incentivising the management
of the Group (the “Employee Share Award Scheme” or the
“Scheme”) has been adopted by Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited
(“Plenty Gold”), Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng on
25 October 2010. On 25 January 2013, MSPEA Pharma Holdings
B.V. also participated in the Employee Share Award Scheme.
Trustee Co has been appointed as the trustee to hold the reserved
shares under the Employee Share Award Scheme. Plenty Gold, Dr.
Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng, as settlors of a trust, have
reserved and set aside a total of 33,750,000 shares; and MSPEA
Pharma Holdings B.V. has reserved and set aside an additional
3,750,000 shares, all of which are being held by the Trustee Co
as trustee for the Employee Share Award Scheme. The Employee
Share Award Scheme involves the granting of existing shares held
by the Trustee Co and no new shares will be issued pursuant to the

Employee Share Award Scheme.

The Company measures the services received from its employees
in accordance with the requirements applicable to equity-settled
share-based payment transactions, with a corresponding increase
recognised in equity as a contribution from the major shareholders.
No new shares will be issued by the Company under the Employee
Share Award Scheme and there is no dilution impact to the
earnings per share calculation as a result of the Employee Share
Award Scheme.

Under the Employee Share Award Scheme, share awards were
granted to the eligible employees of the Group, which are
exercisable into the specific number of shares of the Company, held
by the Trustee Co., designated in each financial year during the
period from the grant date up to the expiry date of the relevant

awards granted.
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HEZZ— )\EAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

20. DAJBAR 2o BB A 5k )

(1)

e B h it (40)

WA B B SE st > 38
TR FALE G EREER > w17
P 2% AR S BAF B (el 452 1 S
L2 TR AR B 173 8% 38
1k 3R ) 9 52 1A 52 RE L R
A WAL R B R E B -

AL A TR B 0 JR 17 5
MR

20. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

(1)  Share award scheme (Continued)

Under the Employee Share Award Scheme, share awards were
granted to the eligible employees of the Group, which are
exercisable into the specific number of shares of the Company, held
by the Trustee Co., designated in each financial year during the
period from the grant date up to the expiry date of the relevant

awards granted.

The summary of the share awards granted to certain employees of

the Group is as follows:

B ol
SR AT B R BEMMH
(#75) (F)
Exercise price Number of

in HK$  awards granted

per share award (in thousands)

B EH Grant date
—“F—-—"F=H—+H 20 March 2012 3.19 14,150
“E—=FNAZ R 27 September 2013 3.19 19,750
B W It el 21 October 2013 0.70 2,050
35,950

WoFE—=ANENAZHAH A
A W16 R B A R o R R
31,448,172 1 BEMHE (127 234 2 (B
B E i AR S 47 ) #=AT ((E 5
IR BB 1.5 7 45 70049 Pt 173 52
B -

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

On 28 June 2016, the Group modified the share award scheme.
The remaining 31,448,172 share options, which were granted to
but not yet exercised by 234 employees, were replaced by new

share awards with an exercise price of HK$1.57 per share award.

INTERIM REPORT 2018
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20. DAJBAR 2o 2L uR £ 5k )
(i) Ay S )

BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

20. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

(i) Share award movements

AR LA B0 5 Bl 14 R MR i ) 0 The following share awards were outstanding under the Scheme
Frff - during the Period:
By Ay BE )
PR
(¥7T)
Average

exercise price

in HK$ per B (T17)

share award Awards (in thousands)
R\ —E—tF
2018 2017
w—H—H At 1 January 1.57 2,904 5,403
EATH Exercised 1.57 (990) (1,545)
BRI Forfeited 1.57 (18) (239)
WARA=1H At 30 June 1,896 3,619

1 AT o P 5 D 1 Je 95 1 S0 e A
T -

EpNER:] Expiry date

ZERZEARAZAH 28 June 2021

WZZE—-ANEANHA=TH:
1,896,00013 (=% — L4+ = A
=+ —H : 2,904,000 %) 1 RA47 {5
F14 2% &) e 37 A T AT 8 Y S (=
F—tEFH=+—H : &) -

BN BT R B B 48 B R
1 A5 A 4 4 2 2R T R A B S
AR H#173,000 C(E =F— L
ERA=ZTHIEARMA : AR
889,000 7T) » 3 A HE % [A) e 5 A E
S o

Share awards outstanding have the following expiry date and

exercise price:

B e
BERNTRE 1
(#7) TR H M AR AT SR b B P A AR A R AT B
Exercise price (F1) HEEE (F4)
in HK$ per Number of outstanding Number of outstanding vested
share award awards granted (thousands) and exercisable awards (thousands)
ZEF)\E e S vt e Syt “EF
AREHE +ZAZ+—H ARA=ZFH +ZA=E+—H
30 June 2018 31 December 2017 30 June 2018 31 December 2017
1.57 1,896 2,904 - -

Out of the 1,896,000 (31 December 2017: 2,904,000) outstanding
awards, no (31 December 2017: nil) awards were exercisable at 30
June 2018.

During the period, a total expense amounting to RMB173,000 (Six
months ended 30 June 2017: RMB889,000) was recognised in the
condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss for share awards

granted to employees with a corresponding change in equity.
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HEZZ— )\EAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

20. PABAR By e u i Ak (2 20. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)
(iii) SR 5 B A FAE (iii) Fair value of share awards

ARrIERGUTEFCHEMN A
AR E A i A T S K 2
FHSER A H - AN FIHEEE
AT SR I AR R R
S0 R R A RS AR R T
B2 W E A S5
(i A BR O BEE AN T

The executive directors of the board of the Company have used the
binomial model to determine the fair value of the awards granted,
which is to be expensed over the vesting period. Significant
judgement on parameters, such as risk-free rate, dividend yield
and expected volatility, is required to be made by the executive
directors of the board of the Company in applying the binomial

model, of which the inputs ate summarised below.

ZENE “F=4 “F-CF
2016 2013 2012
ARZHAR TAZtH—H RAZHER ZAZHH
RHH B HH B iliH £ HiH

et B ey B iy B2 T4y B2

Share awards  Share awards  Share awards  Share awards

granted on granted on granted on granted on

28 June 21 October 27 September 20 March

JA s H A A i ol £ Closing price at the grant date 160V TT 5.78¥ T 5.18¥7C 313 T
HK$1.60 HK$5.78 HKS$5.18 HK$3.13

Ll Risk-free rate 0.64% 1.00% 121% 0.74%
iids Dividend yield 2.44% 1.98% 1.21% 1.14%
FIIEE () Expected volatility (i) 41.38% 41.81% 42.07% 48.99%

32 L P [ s 0 A 0 22 5t 5
TR NR > JIRRIEA 2 R P
¥y A H B E A A B E -

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

The expected volatility, measured as the standard deviation of
expected share price returns, is determined based on the average

daily trading price volatility of the shares of the Company.

INTERIM REPORT 2018



21.

S R D R S O R B

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

e B

21.

BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

DIVIDENDS
BEAA=+HIEAMA

Six months ended 30 June

= A
2018 2017
ANBRH T AR T
RMB’000 RMB 000
*;@%@i ﬁ(«%ﬁ
Unaudited Unaudited
B E L B R e Dividends on ordi.nary shares
declared and paid:
:?*tﬁﬂiﬁ;ﬁﬂﬁ %\ o R A Final dividend for 2017: RMB1.3 cents
ANRHEE13 50 (CF—AE « ) per ordinary share (2016: Nil) 123,124 =
R R Proposed dividends on ordinary shares:
TR NEH-RRE First dividend for 2018: RMBO.4 cents
A % e N R 0.4 3 per ordinary share (2017: RMB1.8 cents)
(ZF—t4: ARW1.84) 37,884 170,479

HEHEER T -LHEAA T AER
REANFABE_F—LFENA=TH
EAEARN RS EHRARK 18D -
HR-ZF—-tHENAT=PERFF_F
—LHENA LB AFIAL AR A M
AR FBOR -

WE_F—LFETZA=T—HILFE
) A HH B 4 A R A T N R 1.3 40 (5 3
N B ¥ 123,124,000 70 ) B I HUY —F
— J\AE 7S H — H B AT W A 8 ) JB S 4
Reg LR —F— \FERAZ+H
AT ZE = NERA T Z AZFIARLN
Gl EA T e

HEHEGH FE -/ FAH L HER
R ZN/NEI R S E 5 PN
(ﬁi:?gt@ﬁﬂz+ﬁtﬁﬁﬁ'
BHRARE185) o HRZF—/)\4FE+
B == E&%%EH%M:; — J\4E
T H A0 B £ 50 A A R4 i A
AT o

An interim dividend of RMB1.8 cents per share of the Company for the
six months ended 30 June 2017 was proposed by the Board on 21 August
2017. It was paid on 13 September 2017 to shareholders of the Company
who were on the register of members of the Company on 7 September
2017.

A final cash dividend of RMB1.3 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounting to RMB123,124,000 was approved by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 1
June 2018 and was paid on 20 June 2018 to shareholders whose names

appeared on the register of members of the Company on 13 June 2018.

An interim dividend of RMBO0.4 cents per share of the Company (for the
six months ended 30 June 2017: RMB1.8 cents per share) was proposed
by the Board on 27 August 2018. It is payable on or around 31 October
2018 to shareholders of the Company who are on the register of members
of the Company on 24 October 2018.
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HEZZ— )\EAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

22. BERELENBLS

22. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

BEAHA=+HIEAMA

Six months ended 30 June

—F— )\ —F—tF
2018 2017
Bk AR¥TF 7T ARET T
Notes RMB 000 RMB 000
REEY R
Unaudited Unaudited
R B il i ] Profit before tax 921,046 997,186
LA IHH Adjustments for:
— W3 - R R i - Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 6 92,062 81,729
— BB - Depreciation of investment
properties 6 538 889
— T A - Amortisation of intangible assets 6 48,487 64,390
— - b e R 6 - Amortisation of land use rights 6 8,749 7,831
—{d R AR TR AR - Share of profits and losses of
JEAG B 4 investments accounted for
using the equity method 21,405 (28,966)
— KM A F R g - Gain on disposal of a subsidiary — (125,771)
—WEZE - BE K - Gain or loss on disposal of property,
B En plant and equipment 1,414 (74)
— A PEF A E LR - Gain on changes in fair value of
GG E N T EEB I s financial assets at FVPL (10,592) —
— DU BeA 5 FE B 1 A 5 B S - Share-based compensation expenses 20 173 889
—FLEBIX - Interest expense 1,920 —
—FE A - Interest income (66,978) (35,925)
BEE S Operating cash flow before working
EH TG capital changes 1,018,224 962,178
BEERERAREE) Changes in operating
assets and liabilities:
—f R - Inventories (54,042) (33,269)
— B 5 B A AR K - Trade and other receivables 47,571 7,042
— B 5 B A e AT HER - Trade and other payables 250,188 140,793
BEGEELENB 4 Cash generated from operating activities 1,261,941 1,076,744
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

23. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Capital commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting

period but not yet incurred are as follows:

i
As at

e SIS e Sl kS

AA=+H  +ZA=1+—H

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

AR T ANR#T T

RMB’000 RMB 000

RBEY RFE

Unaudited Audited

ED Y& Property, plant and equipment 156,832 148,135
L& Intangible assets - product

— B R E development in progress 58,683 73,875

215,515 222,010

MRBHEZREEERATF

2018 FHAHRE
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ—)EAA=ZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

23. R m) 23. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) REHEARYE (b)
742 B AR R AT OB A L S ok
HESTHAZYE - HEHRE
— B RS HIME %
AL 5 0 L W A 4

AR A T A0 L M Ao 1 AR

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various office premises under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The lease terms are between 1 and 5
years and the majority of the lease agreements are renewable at the

end of the lease periods at market prices.

The aggregate future minimum lease payments under non-

A SR T cancellable operating leases are as follows:
i
As at

SR )\ TR —LE
AH=Z+H  +FZA=+—H
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
ANBRH T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
RBFEY RE
Unaudited Audited
—ERN Within 1 year 1,408 1,460
RN Between 2 and 5 years 588 654
1,996 2,114
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24. BB RS

AR EE ] Plenty Gold (17 5 i JiE 4 BF Bk
it BRSE) ] > Plenty Gold #EA A</ Hl ik
10 46.62% - B T 53.38% ML AN HEREIZ £
Ao A SRR FBBOR R BSR4 o

(a)

(b)

k2l D S 7 O B
W4/ 4 UL

HETHRE ERELR
g AR A
WLRE FEMBEAAT
ol I A

Medifood International SA 72 [ 45 4 7]
I B 75 0 2 A B e P 4 4

24.

BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Plenty Gold (incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands), which owns 46.62% of the Company’s shares. The
remaining 53.38% of the shares are widely held. The ultimate controlling

shareholder of the Group is Dr. Che Fengsheng.

(a) Name and relationship with related parties

Name Relationship

Dr. Che Fengsheng Chairman of the Board
Beijing Ruiye Associate of the Group
Tonghua Tianshi Associate of the Group
Pharmadax (Foshan) Associate of the Group

Medifood International SA  Associate of the Group

Save as disclosed in other notes to the financial statements, the

BT 28 S M related party transactions are summarised as follows:
N A P T 4 (b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
BRENA=THIEAMA
Six months ended 30 June
“F-N\F CELE
2018 2017
AR#F ANRHTF T
RMB 000 RMB 000
RIBEN RICH N
Unaudited Unaudited
s Fees 475 3,022
e Salary 12,256 7,052
12,731 10,074

MR EEREBERAR
2018 FHAHRE
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ—)EAA=ZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

24. W25 41) 24. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Concinued)
() HIR&E 6 M ELBE A 5 (c) Period-end balances and transactions with related
parties

BEAA=ZFHIEAMEA

Six months ended 30 June

SR )\ —E L&
2018 2017
AR AR EF
RMB’000 RMB000
RBEG REHE
Unaudited Unaudited

2 A F AR A Interest income from an associate
e st Beijing Ruiye — 430
Wb RE Tonghua Tianshi 1,710 —
1,710 430

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
INTERIM REPORT 2018
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24. BT RG (4)
(o) IR &b T B2 B I T W A2 5

BEZZ—)EAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

24. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Period-end balances and transactions with related

(4 parties (Continued)
iy
As at
SR )\4E —E L&
AAZ+H  +ZA=+—H
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
ANR¥T 7T ARE T
RMB’000 RMB 000
REEY REY
Unaudited Audited
JRE WA 5 A ) 3K OE Amounts due from associates
BILRE Tonghua Tianshi 79,651 77,942
il L1 T Pharmadax (Foshan) 120,000 120,000
gz Beijing Ruiye 38,250 30,000
Medifood International SA Medifood International SA — 17
237,901 227,959
B A EC At PR 77 KO Amount due from other related party
SR Dr. Che Fengsheng 9,672 9,675
JRE A} JEC At PR 7 KO Amount due to other related party
Plenty Gold Plenty Gold 83 83

MEREEEREEGRAR

2018 FHAHRE
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZ— )\EAA=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

25. W%

ASEE IR B 2R T
WP 2 A R M A S i R =
i o

26. B

By 7 SR BT PR AR — B KSR H
PREAT TR o

27. HE B

RBF PGS MBI ER ZF
—/\AENH T4 & B E R %
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SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

25.

26.

27

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Group had no significant events after the reporting period up to the
date of the approval of the unaudited interim condensed consolidated

financial statements.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the

current period’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 August
2018.
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